
           

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
McMinnville, Oregon

AGENDA
McMINNVILLE CIVIC HALL
200 NE SECOND STREET

June 28, 2016
6:00 p.m. – Work Session

7:00 p.m. – Regular Council Meeting

Welcome! All persons addressing the Council will please use the table at the front of the Board Room. All
testimony is electronically recorded. Public participation is encouraged. If you desire to speak on any
agenda item, please raise your hand to be recognized after the Mayor calls the item. If you wish to
address Council on any item not on the agenda, you may respond as the Mayor calls for “Invitation to
Citizens for Public Comment.”
  

NOTE:  The Dinner Meeting will be held at the McMinnville Civic Hall and will
begin at 6:00 p.m.  This will be a Work Session to hear the presentation from the
Police Department's Investigation Team.  
 

             

CITY MANAGER'S SUMMARY MEMO
 

a.   City Manager's Summary Memorandum
 

b.   Work Session Informational Materials
 

CALL TO ORDER
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

INVITATION TO CITIZENS FOR PUBLIC COMMENT – The Mayor will announce that any interested
audience members are invited to provide comments. Anyone may speak on any topic other than: 

1) a topic already on the agenda;
2) a matter in litigation,
3) a quasi judicial land use matter; or,
4) a matter scheduled for public hearing at some future date.

The Mayor may limit the duration of these comments.
 

1. CONSENT AGENDA
 

a.   Consider the Minutes of the March 22, 2016 Joint McMinnville City Council / Water & Light
and Regular City Council Meetings

 

b.   Resolution No. 2016 - 32:  Declaring the City's election to receive state revenues
 

c.   Resolution No. 2016 - 33:  Certifying provision of municipal services by the City of
McMinnville as required by ORS 221.760

 

d.   Resolution No. 2016 - 34:  Extending the City of McMinnville's workers compensation



d.   Resolution No. 2016 - 34:  Extending the City of McMinnville's workers compensation
coverage to volunteers of the City of McMinnville and repealing Resolution No. 2015-30

 

e.   Resolution No. 2016 - 35:  Adopting a new fee schedule for ambulance services provided by
the City of McMinnville and repealing Resolution No. 2015-32

 

f.   Resolution No. 2016 - 36:  Providing for and approving a form of contract by and between
the City of McMinnville, Oregon and the McMinnville Rural Fire Protection District

 

g.   Resolution No. 2016 - 37:  Appointing McMinnville's Principal Planner as the successor to
the current Project Certifying Officer and Environmental Review Certifying Officer for the 2014
City of McMinnville's Housing Rehabilitation Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
project

 

h.   Resolution No. 2016 - 38:  Appointing the Principal Planner as the successor to the current
board member Planning Director Doug Montgomery to the Yamhill County Affordable Housing
Corporation's (YCAHC) regional Housing Rehabilitation Collaborative and board of directors

 

i.   Resolution No. 2016 - 39:  Renewal of Contract for Medical Director Services with John
Heiser, M.D.

 

j.   Resolution No. 2016 – 40:  A Resolution awarding the contract for the NE 5th Street
Improvements Project, Project 2015-10.
 

 

k.   Resolution No. 2016 - 41:  A Resolution approving Task Order No. 3 to the Personal
Services Contract for the design of the 5 th Street and Alpine Avenue transportation bond
measure projects.
 

 

l.   Resolution No. 2016 - 42:  A Resolution approving the acquisition of property from Ninety
Degrees, LLC for the 5th Street transportation bond project.

 

m.   Resolution No. 2016 - 43:  Authorizing and Directing the entry into a contract for the
provision of janitorial services at various City facilities

 

n.   Resolution No. 2016 - 44:  Adopting a supplemental budget for fiscal year 2015-16 and
making supplemental appropriations

 

o.   Resolution No. 2016 - 45:  Making Budgetary transfers for Fiscal year 2015-16
 

2. PUBLIC HEARING
 

a.   7:00 p.m. Public Hearing:  Appeal of Planning Commission decision regarding proposed
residential tentative subdivision plan.

 

3. NEW BUSINESS
 

a.   Report and Recommendation by Gary Eastlund of Hagan-Hamilton to approve the 2016 -
2017 Property, Liability, Workers Compensation, and Auto Insurance Coverages

 



 



             

4. RESOLUTIONS
 

a.   Resolution No. 2016 - 46:  Adopting the budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016; to
make the appropriations; to impose the property taxes; and to categorize the property taxes

 

b.   Resolution No. 2016 - 47:  Approving a Personal Services Agreement Between the City of
McMinnville and Doug Montgomery

 

c.   Resolution No. 2016 - 48:  Authorizing the City Manager to execute the forthcoming grant
offer from the FAA relative to the Airport Improvement Project contingent upon the City
Attorney's review

 

5. ADVICE / INFORMATION ITEMS
 

a. Reports from Councilors on Committee and Board Assignments
 

b. Department Head Reports
 

6. ADJOURNMENT
 



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
City Manager's Summary Memorandum

BACKGROUND:

Attachments
Summary Memo 



  CONSENT AGENDA 

 

  Work Session  

 

 
M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
 
DATE:  June 22nd, 2016 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM:  Martha Meeker, City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Agendas for the June 28th McMinnville City Council Work, Regular Sessions and 
Urban Renewal Agency Meeting 

 

Detective Scott Fessler and the Police Investigation Team will present a historical look back at 
the structure of the Detective Section and provide a snapshot of the trends he and his team are 
seeing today.  Overall, the workload presented is representative of the increased demands on 
the Police Department as a whole and warrants a closer look into how the City balances 
workload with appropriate manning as we look to make our police force a more proactive force 
for our Citizens.  As such, the staff recommends a follow on work session in November to 
discuss required manning levels, funding options to support those manpower levels and any 
proposed changes to services provided within both the Police Department and within the City.   
 

The following items are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion without separate 
discussion on each item.  If a Council member (or a citizen through a Council member) wishes 
additional time on a particular topic, it will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately. 
 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 22nd, 2016 DINNER AND REGULAR MEETINGS RESOLUTION  

 

RESOLUTION 2016 – 32 DECLARING THE CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE 
REVENUES 

State revenues are apportioned based on a per captia amount and only distributed after a 
municipality elects to receive them for any given fiscal year through adoption of an ordinance or 
resolution.  These funds include proceeds from cigarette, gas and liquor taxes 
 
  

 



Memorandum to Mayor and City Council - 2 -  
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 33 CERTIFYING PROVISION OF MUNICIPAL SERVICES BY THE 
CITY OF MCMINNVILLE AS REQUIRED BY ORS 221.760 

Oregon state statute requires cities located within a county that has more than 100,000 
inhabitants to certify they provide four or more municipal services in order to qualify to receive 
revenues from cigarette, gas and liquor taxes.  

 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 34 EXTENDING THE CITY OF MCMINNVILLE'S WORKERS 
COMPENSATION COVERAGE TO VOLUNTEERS OF THE CITY OF MCMINNVILLE AND 
REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 2015-30 

City County Insurance Services requires members pass a resolution to extend workers’ 
compensation insurance coverage to volunteers.  There is a modest cost to providing this 
insurance coverage for volunteers, but it provides protection for the City against liability claims 
stemming from accidents or injuries arising out of volunteer service. 
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 35 ADOPTING A NEW FEE SCHEDULE FOR AMBULANCE 
SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF MCMINNVILLE AND REPEALING RESOLUTION 
NO. 2015-32 

The rates below reflect the requested increases over the 2015/16 levels for ambulance 
service and include a 0.3% increase in the Consumer Price Index for the 
Portland/Salem Metro Area. 

    2015/16 2016/17 

Within City Advanced Life Support $1,680  $1,685  

  Basic Life Support $1,680  $1,685  

Outside City Advanced Life Support $1,890  $1,896  

  Basic Life Support $1,890  $1,896  

        

  Transfers $2,250  $2,257  

  Medical Aid $475  $476  

  Mileage $23  $23  

  
Time Pay Contract 
Monthly Fee $5  $5  

  Waiting Time $100  $100  

Within City Fire Med $70  $70  

Outside City Fire Med $90  $90  

 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 36 PROVIDING FOR AND APPROVING A FORM OF CONTRACT BY 
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF MCMINNVILLE, OREGON AND THE MCMINNVILLE RURAL 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

The City of McMinnville has historically provided fire services for the McMinnville Rural Fire 
Protection District and this contract continues that arrangement with the standard, agreed upon 
3% annual increase.  The contract total is for $347,316. 
 
  



Memorandum to Mayor and City Council - 3 -  
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 37 APPOINTING MCMINNVILLE'S PRINCIPAL PLANNER AS THE 
SUCCESSOR TO THE CURRENT PROJECT CERTIFYING OFFICER AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW CERTIFYING OFFICER FOR THE 2014 CITY OF 
MCMINNVILLE'S HOUSING REHABILITATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT (CDBG) PROJECT 

The City currently has an open Housing Rehabilitation CDBG project that was awarded in 
December of 2014, and, as such, the City is required to designate both a Project Certifying 
Officer and an Environmental Certifying Officer.  The designated Project Certifying Officer is 
responsible for signing required contracts and other documents associated with the grant.  The 
Environmental Certifying Officer is responsible for signing all environmental documents 
associated with the grant. 
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 38 APPOINTING THE PRINCIPAL PLANNER AS THE SUCCESSOR 
TO THE CURRENT BOARD MEMBER PLANNING DIRECTOR DOUGT MONTGOMERY TO 
THE YAMHILL COUNTY AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION'S (YCAHC) REGIONAL 
HOUSING REHABILITATION COLLABORATIVE AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Yamhill County Affordable Housing Corporation (YCAHC) promotes homeownership for low 
and moderate income citizens by developing, purchasing, selling, conserving and rehabilitating 
housing located in Yamhill County.  YCAHC contracts with the Housing Authority of Yamhill 
County to operate a revolving loan fund of over $3 million to provide Housing Rehabilitation 
loans to low and moderate income homeowners.  YCAHC also provides Affordable Housing 
opportunities by obtaining real estate through a variety of ways and then offering them initially to 
low to moderate-income families at a discounted affordable price. 
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 39 RENEWING THE CONTRACT FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
PHYSICIAN SPONSOR TO DR. JOHN HEISER 

Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 682 and Oregon Administrative Rules, Chapter 847, Division 
35 requires agencies proving Emergency Medical Services to receive professional medical 
oversight with regard to the clinical operation of emergency medical services.  John Heiser MD 
has successfully been providing these since 2006. 
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 40 AWARDING THE CONTRACT FOR THE NE 5th STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

The City opened a request for bids for improvements to NE 5
th Street earlier this year 

with three applicants responding (Haworth Inc, Kodiak Pacific Construction and 
Westech Construction).  The bid from Haworth Inc, in the amount of $1,927,025, was 
deemed to be the lowest responsible and responsive bid.  
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 41 APPROVING TASK ORDER NO. 3 TO THE PERSONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT FOR THE DESIGN OF THE 5th STREET AND ALPINE AVE TRANSPORTATION 
BOND PROJECTS 

The City Council awarded the Personal Services Contract for preliminary design services for the 
5th Street and Alpine Ave transportation bond measure projects to HDR Engineering, Inc in June 
2015.  Since that time, the contract has been amended twice and this third task order will 
complete the final project design as well as provide for construction inspection and engineering 
services for the 5th Street improvements.     



Memorandum to Mayor and City Council - 4 -  
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 42 APPROVING THE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY FROM NINETY 
DEGREES LLC FOR THE 5TH STREET IMPROVEMENTS TRANSPORTATION BOND 
PROJECT 

In February, 2016 the Council authorized the acquisition of property supporting the 5th Street 
Transportation Bond Project.  Since that time, the City's consultant, HDR Engineering, has 
completed the appraisal and negotiation process to acquire property from Ninety Degrees, LLC 
for a sum total of $700. 
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 43 AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE ENTRY INTO A CONTRACT 
FOR THE PROVISION OF JANITORIAL SERVICES AT VARIOUS CITY FACILITIES 

Oregon State Statues mandate public agencies procure certain products and services from a 
Qualified Rehabilitation Facility employing individuals with qualifying disabilities.  Janitorial 
service is one of these services.  While contracts with QRFs are exempt from competitive 
bidding, the City engaged each company listed on the State of Oregon’s website and decided 
Garten Services out of Salem best fit the City’s needs.  Note:  Mid Valley Rehabilitation was 
contacted but the scope of the required services was beyond their capacity. 
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 44 ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2016 AND MAKING SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Oregon Local Budget Law allows a local government to prepare a supplemental budget when 
an unforeseen occurrence or condition occurs.  Changes requested are for the Transient 
Lodging Tax Fund to increase appropriations to allow disbursement of higher than anticipated 
transient lodging tax revenues, the Telecommunications Fund to allow disbursement of higher 
than anticipated telecommunication fee revenues and the Airport Maintenance Fund for an 
unanticipated increase in costs of the rehabilitation of the main Runway 4-22 at the McMinnville 
Municipal Airport.   
 
RESOLUTION 2016 – 45 MAKING BUDGETARY TRANSFERS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 – 
2016 

The City’s July 15th payroll includes hours worked during the last week of the current fiscal year 
and first week of the next fiscal year (i.e., June 23rd through July 8th).  The City’s policy has been 
to record personnel services expenditures for June 23rd through June 30th in the July of the 
following fiscal year.  This resolution looks to pull those expenditures back into the year they 
were incurred to increase the accuracy of our budget reporting. 

 
In previous years, the City had considered these expenditures to be immaterial and did not 
record a liability.  However, as payroll costs are increasing, the City has now determined that it 
is appropriate to accrue personnel services costs incurred through June 30th.  As a result of the 
accrual, in several General Fund departments and the Ambulance Fund, actual personnel 
services expenditures may exceed appropriations for fiscal year 2015-2016.  Appropriation 
transfers are not required in some General Fund departments, the Street Fund, Building Fund, 
Wastewater Services Fund, and Information Systems & Services Fund, as it appears that 
savings will be sufficient to offset the accrued personnel services costs in those departments.  
This resolution transfers appropriations from contingency to Salaries & Wages and Fringe 
Benefits accounts, as indicated in this resolution, to ensure the City’s compliance with Local 
Budget Law.   
 



Memorandum to Mayor and City Council - 5 -  
 

  REGULAR AGENDA 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Appeal of the Planning Commission's Approval of a Tentative Subdivision Plan 

In April, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on, and subsequently approved, 
a twenty lot residential subdivision plan located on SW Redmond Hill Road.  The Planning 
Department has since received an appeal of this decision.  The appeal raises a number of 
issues, including concerns regarding drainage, potential impacts on the appellant’s proposed 
marijuana grow operation adjacent to the subdivision but residing within the County, need for 
pedestrian improvements, request that adjacent residents be restricted in their use of certain 
pesticides, request that street dedication occur and the need for wall to prevent view and access 
to the appellant’s property.  The applicant also suggests the tentative subdivision plan be 
modified to move one of the proposed streets such that it parallels and is immediately adjacent 
to a western property line, thereby creating an increased buffer between the marijuana grow 
operation and future residents of this subdivision. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 

Gary Eastlund:  Gary Eastlund of Hagan-Hamilton Insurance has reviewed the market and 
recommends the City renew its coverages with City-County Insurance Services for 
property/liability, auto, mechanical breakdown and workers compensation.  Rates saw as 16% 
increase over the prior year for the first three types of coverage while workers compensation 
saw a 9% increase.  He also recommends renewing the City’s insurance with Ace Property and 
Casualty Insurance for our airport liability insurance (no increase). 

 
RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution 2016 – 47 Adopting the Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2016; to 
make Appropriations; to Impose Property Taxes; and to Categorize Property Taxes 

This resolution adopts the budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016, makes 
appropriations, imposes property taxes, and categorizes property taxes.  The proposed budget 
totals $108,664,100 and imposes a tax rate of $5.02 per $1,000 of assessed value for general 
operations and $1.0879 per $1,000 for debt servicing of $2,715,000. 

 

Resolution 2016 – 32 Approving an Employment Agreement between the City of 
McMinnville and Doug Montgomery 

The City’s Planning Director, Mr Doug Montgomery, is retiring at the end of June 2016.  Since 
his successor will not be onboard until August 1st, the staff is requesting approval of a contract 
for his services on behalf of the City’s Planning Department during this gap period.  The contract 
period is continued through the end of the calendar year to ensure additional capability during 
the changeover if needed. 

 

Resolution 2016 – 48 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Grant Offer from the FAA 
Relative to the Airport Improvement Project  

As part of the City’s upcoming FAA Airport Improvement Program grant application process for 
the Runway 4-22 Rehabilitation Project, the FAA has asked the City to be able to accept and 
sign the offer within a week of presentation.  In order to meet this timeline, the staff is requesting 



Memorandum to Mayor and City Council - 6 -  
 

  URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 

 

the Council provide authorization allowing the City Manager to execute the forthcoming FAA 
Grant Offer contingent up upon the City Attorney’s review of the terms and conditions.   
 
The Grant Application is expected to be in the amount of $7,725,408 contingent upon FAA 
approval of an Independent Fee Evaluation of the Construction Services scope of work which is 
currently in process.  This will be the third and final grant for this project using FAA Grants that 
will cover consulting and construction costs.   
 

 
RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution 2016 – 4 Adopting the Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2016  

The proposed budget for the Urban Renewal District is $2,346.72.  The District was established 
in July 2013 to carry out the objectives of the McMinnville Urban Renewal Plan to foster 
economic growth and revitalization within a 175 acre area including historic downtown and 
neighboring property to the northeast of the downtown area. 
 
Resolution 2016 – 5 Approving a Personal Services Agreement between the McMinnville 
Urban Renewal Agency and Doug Montgomery 

The City’s Planning Director. Mr. Doug Montgomery, is retiring at the end of June 2016.  Since 
his successor will not be onboard until August 1st, the staff is requesting approval to contract his 
services on behalf of the Urban Renewal Agency during this gap period.  The contract period is 
continued through the end of the calendar year to ensure additional capability during the 
changeover if needed. 



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Work Session Informational Materials

BACKGROUND:

Attachments
Memo from Chief Scales 
Memo from Captain Marks 
PowerPoint Presentation 



McMinnville
Police Department

Matt Scales, Chief of Police • 121 SW Adams St. • McMinnville, Oregon 97128-4997 • (503)434-7307 • Fax (503)434-2335

“Devoted to making our city a safer and healthier place to live, work and play.”

To: Martha Meeker, City Manager

From: Matt Scales, Chief of Police

Date: June 20, 2016

Reference: Staffing at the Police Department

This staff report is intended to provide the City Manager and City Council some necessary
background prior to the June 28th, Investigation Section Presentation during a City Council work 
session.  On June 15th the City Manager requested a read ahead packet for the Council outlining 
issues with manning of the Police Department over the last decade.  Captain Marks has put 
together a comprehensive comparison of manning numbers, crime stats, case load stats per 
officer when comparing cities between 20,000 and 40,000 populations.

A historical look back at the police department from 2002 up until present day indicates that 
while the City has grown by roughly 21%, the police department staffing levels have increased 
2%.  The overall increase of sworn officers during this same time period (which includes myself 
and two captains who do not work the road) has increased from 34 sworn to 37 sworn, an 
increase of 8% over the 14 years.  

I know that the sworn officers per thousand can seem somewhat arbitrary in staffing levels.  
Regardless of how you view it, the numbers are telling.  First and foremost it is an accurate 
reflection of staffing by comparison with cities of like size.  You will note in the 2014 FBI charts 
the City of McMinnville is staffed at rate if 1.10 sworn officers per thousand, while the mean of 
cities between 20,000 and 40,000 populations is 1.33.  This seems like a small number, however 
when you flesh it out you will see it will take the hiring of roughly 7 sworn officers to simply get 
us to an average of our comparators.

How has the police department reacted to growing population with resources below our 
comparators?  I have taken a look at back over the last few years to see what the police 
department has stopped doing in order to keep officers on the road at a safe level.  In 2010-11 we 
mothballed our dedicated traffic safety team, taking the two (2) officers off the motors and 
placing them on patrol teams.  In addition, we pulled one (1) School Resource Officer (SRO) 
from the middle schools to try and add capacity to our detective section.  In February 2015, after 
promoting a sergeant to captain, I elected to not promote a sergeant position so we did not pull 



“Devoted to excellence in making our city a safer and healthier place to live, learn, work, and play.”

capacity from the patrol ranks, in short we needed the body.  In 2016 we pulled from the 
backbone of the police department (the patrol section) and moved an officer into the detective 
ranks causing a reduction in patrol staff capacity. While this provided assistance to the detective 
section, we lost a front line responder, essentially “robbing Peter to pay Paul”.

We continue to shuffle the deck, with a limited amount of cards.  We need our police department 
to stop being reactionary and start being proactive with regards to programs and trends.  Having
the ability to have dedicated staff to fill traffic safety positions are crucial to having safe streets 
for our citizens to drive.  Adding back an SRO, would allow the current SRO to focus on the 
High School, instead of having to deal with the middle schools and elementary schools.  The 
McMinnville High School is one of the largest high schools in the state and needs to have 
someone who can be there all the time.  As you all know, school safety is in the minds and hearts 
of everyone, and we must provide adequate safety measures in our schools.

We would add capacity to our patrol staff so we would not have to rely on overtime to backfill 
when officers are injured or unavailable for a multitude of reasons (FMLA, Work Comp, and 
Light Duty).  Being a police officer is dangerous work, and injuries will occur regardless of how 
safe we are.  The police department must be able to maintain flexibility when officers are 
injured, and we are not.  Instead we are in a corner trying to make the best of a tough situation. 

Here are some historical averages of officers on FMLA and Workers Comp from 2011 through 
2015.  On average over this five year period there has been 1,783.5 hours used per year.  That is 
the equivalent of being down roughly one (1) officer per year.  In addition, light duty 
assignments account for missed duty time as well.  An officer is on light duty assignment when 
they have been cleared to return to work, but are not medically stationary to return to full duty.  
From October 2014 to present, employees have worked 3,470 light duty hours.  On average 
during this 21 month period that is 165 hours a month, or over (1) officer per year.  Add the two 
together and at any given time two (2) officers would be on FMLA, Workers Comp, and/or 
working a light duty assignment.

In addition, hiring and retention of officers has been difficult.  We continue to have high 
expectations of our employees, and will not sacrifice these expectations in order to fill the 
uniform. For instance, currently we have two officers in training at the police academy for 16
weeks.  When they return from the academy they will be in training a minimum of 19 weeks, 
with an average number of 21 training weeks.  In essence, we’re not realizing a soloed officer for 
the first 9 months of their employment, and that is if they pass the training.  

As you go through the material provided by Captain Marks recognize that this information was 
compiled from the FBI, and that it is an apples to apples look at where MPD compares with 
others.  The end goal for our citizens is that MPD become a proactive police department that is 
ahead of the curve in terms of services offered, and allows the officers to do exceptional work for 
the citizens we serve.



McMinnville
Police Department

Matt Scales, Chief of Police • 121 SW Adams St. • McMinnville, OR 97128 • (503)434-7307 • Fax (503)434-2335

“Devoted to making our city a safer and healthier place to live, work and play.”

Chief Matt Scales
City Manager Martha Meeker

Staff Report – Staffing issues with the McMinnville Police Department

June 20th, 2016

The City Manager asked for data to be collected and organized regarding police department 
staffing and how it compares to similar sized cities, as well as how it compared historically with 
the rest of the City of McMinnville (from 2002 to present).

Executive Summary:
We looked at data from several sources including the FBI, the US Census Bureau, and League of 
Oregon Cities.  We also included internal information from budget and annual reports created by 
department and city personnel.

Historical comparison: The city of McMinnville has increased in population from 27,861 to 
33,892 from 2002 to 2015, an increase of 21 percent.  During that same time period the staffing 
for the department has increased from 44.69 to 45.93, an increase of 2%, and sworn officers from 
34 to 37, an increase of 8%.  

Other Agencies population Comparison:  Checking all Oregon Cities between 20,000 and 
40,000 populations that also field a police department (excludes Wilsonville); the average 
number of officers per 1,000 populations is 1.33.  Our department is the third lowest with only 
Keizer and West Linn lower.  We currently field 1.10 officers per thousand.  Note it will take the 
hiring of an additional 7 officers to get to the average of our comparators.

Other Agencies Workload Comparison:  The average case load of each officer at most similar 
departments is 93 cases a year.  McMinnville’s officers handle on average165 cases a year.  This 
is a uniquely heavy work load and significantly detracts from the ability of our staff to be 
proactive or even effective in handle the follow-up duties of the department (investigations, extra 
patrol, traffic, etc). The UCR data for similar cities does not show we are top of the chain, but 
we are 4th in overall reporting and 5th in violent crime out of the 15 comparative cities.  Not 
overwhelming, but it shows we are busier than average and among the top third or higher.  The 
departments with higher reporting than us are all above or at the average for officers per 
thousand (Redmond 1.33, Roseburg 1.59, Ashland 1.39, and Klamath Falls 1.69).



“Devoted to excellence in making our city a safer and healthier place to live, learn, work, and play.”

Internal Work Product Information:  

Detectives - Over the last few years investigations has nearly doubled in cases taken and 
investigative work.  In order to manage the workload we have stopped providing assistance to 
patrol except on an exceptional basis, we have utilized our annual detective overtime budget in 
less than half a year even though the detectives have stopped taking patrol coverage shifts, and 
we are not investigating cases without a clear disclosure or evidence.  This last item means that 
we are not investigating cases involving sexualized children even though this is a common clue 
that they have may have been sexually abused themselves.   This provides two problems as it 
allows offenders to continue to exploit children until a disclosure is made and it often negates the 
opportunity to intervene in that child’s life before they risk becoming a sexual predator 
themselves.

Patrol – Over the last few years, patrol officers have seen a large increase in mental health 
complaints and procedures, are generally running at minimums with overtime staffing used to fill 
in the coverage gaps, and have recently expressed frustration that they are unable to complete 
investigations on their cases in a timely manner, leading to less than acceptable service being 
provided to our citizens.  This frustration was expressed in a meeting between the Chief and the 
association earlier this month.  Proactive enforcement (traffic, foot patrols, area checks, FI’s etc) 
have seen a decline over the last few years as our officers are spending a larger percentage of 
time going from call to call and trying to get their investigations completed in any gaps between 
calls.

SRO – We currently have only one School resource officer to cover all of McMinnville School 
District.  His time is primarily focused on McMinnville High School.  He also assists as he is 
available with complaints and concerns at the two middle schools.  There are enough complaints 
and issues that this position is unable to spend much time teaching and getting to know the 
student population (one of the primary goals of the program).  Direct law enforcement activity 
and threat assessment issues are taking the majority of his time and resources.  We also lack the 
police staffing of most comparable school districts making it that much less safe for dealing with 
and attempting to prevent any active shooter situation.  We desperately need to increase this 
program and the school district has asked in previous years, but we have been so strapped in 
patrol and detectives, that this has not been an option.

YCINT – About six years ago we had one detective from each major department and OSP and a 
MPD supervisor for a total of 5 personnel as well as a fairly active crime analyst.  Currently we 
fund one detective as does OSP, YCSO provides a supervisor.  In the last few years, the lack of 
staffing has hurt their ability to actively investigate narcotics tips and complaints and they have 
mainly focused on potential targets that they could use informants for.  This has caused a local 
and countywide frustration with “neighborhood drug houses” and the crime and issues that 
become involved in these situations.  The complaint at City Council last week about 
Queenborough drug house and Thompson Park are a fine example.



“Devoted to excellence in making our city a safer and healthier place to live, learn, work, and play.”

FMLA and Workers Comp losses:

We compiled information on losses of employee time for Worker’s Compensation and FMLA 
from 2011 to present.  They average out to more than 1,783.5 hours per year or the equivalent of 
almost one (1) full officer a year.

Type in hours 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
FMLA 661.5 595.0 1,745.5 660.0 1564.5
Worker’s Comp 166.0 436.0 2,226.0 147.0    822.0

Total 821.5 1,031.0 3,971.5 707.0 2386.5

Average: 1,783.5 hours a year

Light Duty Assignment Hours:

From October 2014 to present, our documentation shows employees have been assigned to light 
duty a total of 3,470 hours.  Recognizing this means an officer is not working the road, we have 
lost on average 165 hours per month in employees assigned to light duty, or the equivalent of 
more than one (1) full officer a year.

Statistical Information:

OREGON
Full-time Law Enforcement Employees
by City, 2014

City Population

Total 
agency 

employees
Total 

officers
Total 

civilians

Officers 
Per 

thousand 
of 

population

UCR -
Violent 
Crime

UCR -
Property 
Crime

UCR -
Total

Lake Oswego 37,836 77 43 34 1.14 19 516 535
Keizer 37,189 45 37 8 0.99 65 785 850
Grants Pass 35,192 78 50 28 1.42
Oregon City 35,112 49 42 7 1.20 30 814 844

McMinnville 33,370 43 37 7 1.10 54 913 967
Redmond 27,733 46 37 9 1.33 88 965 1053
Tualatin 27,079 45 37 8 1.37 28 759 787
West Linn 26,202 30 26 4 0.99 8 252 260
Newberg-
Dundee

25,765 49 35 14 1.36

Woodburn 24,471 42 34 8 1.39 62 662 724
Forest Grove 22,748 34 29 5 1.27 76 651 727



“Devoted to excellence in making our city a safer and healthier place to live, learn, work, and play.”

Roseburg 21,986 39 35 4 1.59 53 1250 1303
Klamath Falls 21,290 41 36 5 1.69 69 900 969
Ashland 20,869 37 29 8 1.39 26 1675 1701
Milwaukie 20,562 40 36 4 1.75 51 462 513

Average 1.33 48.38 815.69 864.08

(Source FBI.gov)

Source: agencies contacted within the last month for statistical comparison.

As you will note, McMinnville PD averaged 165 cases taken per sworn officer in 2015, while 
comparators averaged 93 cases taken per sworn officer in 2015.  This is a significant deviation 
from the average.

149

102 99
89

165

65

78

94

74

89

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Keizer Lake Oswego Tigard (2014) Tualatin McMinnville West Linn Woodburn Forest Grove Beaverton
(2014)

Oregon City

Cases Taken per Officer 

2015



“Devoted to excellence in making our city a safer and healthier place to live, learn, work, and play.”

Thanks for your consideration and evaluation of this information.

Captain Dennis Marks
McMinnville Police Department



McMinnville Police Department

Detective Section



Current structure of the Detective Section:

(5) Person/Property Crime Detectives
- Det. Bill Christensen - Det. Hugo Cerda
- Det. Sam Elliott - Det. Brian McMullen
- Det. Justin James (was added in April, 2016)

(Due to case loads, they primarily work Person Crimes)

(1) Narcotics Detective (assigned to YCINT)
- Det. Adam Dean

(1) Detective Sergeant



Historical Structure/Staffing:

 Up to about mid 2010 – (3) Person/Property Crime Detectives

 In about July 2010 – Added a 4th Detective and the focus became 
(3) Person Crime Detectives and (1) Property Crime Detective

 Around end of 2012 – Focus shifted away from a dedicated 
Property Crime Detective and back to (4) Detectives working 
primarily Person Crimes and occasional significant Property Crimes

 The structure of the Detective Section remained that way up 
until April of 2016 when a 5th Detective was added

 Over the past two years, the volume of Person Crime cases
(in particular, cases involving children) has increased to the point 
that Detectives are rarely if ever able to take on Property Crimes



Significant Trend Affecting the
Detective Section:

Substantial Increases in Total
Number of Cases Over the

Past 2+ Years



Historical Case Load Information:

 2010 – Approx. 145 total cases – added a 4th Det. in July

 2011 – Approx. 191 total cases – Property Crime Detective was 
able to address several significant Property Crime sprees

 2012 – Approx. 159 total cases

 2013 – Approx. 167 total cases - * Only (3) Det’s for ~4 months

 2014 – Approx. 232 total cases - * Only (3) Det’s for ~5 months

 2015 – Approx. 300 total cases - * Only (3) Det’s for ~7 months

* Staffing issues on Patrol required reassigning a Detective and/or being unable to 
fill a vacancy in the Detective Section for an extended period of time



Breakdown of 2015 Detective Cases:

 Two-thirds of cases involved children (<18) – Approx. 200 cases
(Child “Victim”, Child “Suspect”, or Other involved)

Cases Involved:  Physical Abuse;  Sexual Abuse;
Drug Exposure;  “Sexting”/Exploitation;  Child Pornography; 
Assist Other Agencies (AOA’s);  Info Reports;  etc.

 Lead Agency for Homicide in the Jail (MCRT) – May 

 Lead Agency for YCSO Officer Involved Shooting (MCRT) – July

 Attempted Homicide – Gang related shooting – August 

What about the other ~95 cases in 2015?



Breakdown of 2015 Detective Cases (cont):

 Death Investigations (Unattended; Suicide): 17  
 Major Assaults / Stabbings / Weapons Offenses: 8
 Adult Sexual Assaults: 8
 Missing Persons: 6
 Robbery (assisted on two YCSO bank robberies): 5
 Arson / Suspicious Fires: 5
 Aggravated Thefts / Felony Thefts: 5
 Elder Abuse (physical, financial, etc): 4
 Prostitution stings: 2
 School Threats: 2
 Fraud: 1

 Other (AOA’s, S/W’s, Assist Patrol on calls; Drug Offenses, DRE, 
Info Reports; Community Presentations; etc): ~30



Significant Trend Affecting the
Detective Section:



Significant Trend Affecting the
Detective Section:

Substantial Increases in Average
Case Load per Detective Over the

Past 2+ Years



Historical Monthly Case Loads per Detective:

 2010 – (~145)  Approx. 3.5 new cases per Detective, per month
 2011 – (~191)  Approx. 4.0 new cases per Detective, per month
 2012 – (~159)  Approx. 3.3 new cases per Detective, per month
 2013 – (~167)  Approx. 3.8 new cases per Detective, per month

Average for 2010-2013 = 3.7 new cases per Detective, per month

 2014 – (~232)  Approx. 5.5 new cases per Detective, per month
(49% increase compared to the 2010-2013 average of 3.7)

 2015 – (~300)  Approx. 7.4 new cases per Detective, per month
(About a 35% increase compared to 2014 average; and a
100% increase compared to the 2010-2013 average of 3.7)



So, what if we would have had . . . ?
(remember 2010-2013 average of 3.7 new cases per Det., per month)

(4) Det’s for all of 2014? – Avg new cases per Det., per mo. = 4.8

(5) Det’s for all of 2014? – Avg new cases per Det., per mo. = 3.9

(4) Det’s for all of 2015? – Avg new cases per Det., per mo. = 6.3

(5) Det’s for all of 2015? – Avg new cases per Det., per mo. = 5.0

(6) Det’s for all of 2015? – Avg new cases per Det., per mo. = 4.2

(7) Det’s for all of 2015? – Avg new cases per Det., per mo. = 3.6

We had only (3) Detectives for 7 months in 2015



Significant Trend Affecting the
Detective Section:



Social media usage is so prevalent now that on 
almost every case in which a Detective collects 
social media content, they will likely find some 
sort of corroborating information about the 
crime they are investigating…

… And in the process, they will likely find 
information about other criminal acts.

These additional cases have
become known as “Spin-Off” cases.



Some Recent Examples of “Spin-Off” cases:

Sep, 2015 – Case: 31 yr old male (S) and a teenage female (V).
Obtained social media content for several subjects = ~70,000 pages.
It took months and hundreds of hours to review the information.
Information points towards ~10 new sex crime cases.

Oct, 2015 – Case: 17 yr old male (S) and 14 yr old female (V).
Obtained social media content for several subjects = ~60,000 pages.
Information points towards at least 2 new sex crime cases.

Feb, 2016 – Case: 15 yr old female sending nude photos online.
Information points towards ~16 new online exploitation cases.

March, 2016 – Case: 12 yr old female sending nude photos online.
Information points towards ~7 new sex crime / exploitation cases.



So What Does All This Mean for the
Detective Section Going Forward?

Very simply…  It means we can not continue at the pace we 
have been going with the resources we currently have.

“Personnel resources are at capacity”… “We’re just tapped out”
Martha Meeker, City Manager;  News-Register article, February 2016

In December of 2015, we had to start seriously evaluating 
and leveraging our available resources to try and start 
bringing down the on-going monthly case loads to what the 
historical average has been (~3.7).

That meant some cases would not be able to be 
investigated  (“INACTIVATED” – Unable to Investigate).



Case Stats for December, 2015:

There were about (38) new cases during the month and 
there were (4) Detectives.  That would have equated to an 
average of ~9.5 new cases per Detective for the month.

To reduce the number of new cases per Detective,
about (7) cases had to be “INACTIVATED” and were not 
assigned for investigation.

That left about (31) cases, which equated to an average of 
~7.75 new cases per Detective for the month;

That was still an increase of about 110% when compared to 
the historical monthly average of 3.7.



What does 2016 look like so far?
January thru April, 2016 

Approx. 139 total cases (average of ~35 per month)

10 cases were “INACTIVATED” (not assigned for 
investigation), and 5 cases were referred back to Patrol for 
investigation.  That left approx. 124 total cases.

Based on the number of Detectives each month, that has 
equaled an average of 7.0 new cases, per Det., per month 
for January thru April (~90% above historical avg of 3.7).

We could possibly reach approx. 370 total cases for 2016.



And if all that is not enough to indicate 
there is a serious crisis…

Significant Trend Affecting the
Detective Section:

Monthly “Carry-Over”



“Carry-Over” is the difference between the number 
of cases that come in during a given month, versus 
the number of cases that are cleared or closed out 
during that given month.

During a brief review of monthly “Carry-Over” rates 
for the past year and half (going back to January of 
2015), in all but one month we have had more open 
cases at the end of each month than we started 
with at the beginning of the month.

This is a NON-WIN-ABLE situation.
At this pace, we will never catch up.



And lastly…

McMinnville Police Department
Strategic Plan

June, 2014

(specifically information collected from the
“Citizen Group” that helped to draft the plan)



With regards to “Planning Priorities”:

Members of the citizen group ranked
“Compassion / Empathy / Customer Service”

higher, more times, than any of the other listed 
planning considerations.

With regards to “Service Priorities”:

Members of the citizen group ranked 
“Crimes Against Persons” as their highest service 
priority (followed immediately by Crimes Against 

Property and then Behavioral Crimes)



McMinnville PD, 2014 Strategic Plan (cont)

With regards to “Staffing”:

79% of the citizen group believed the police 
department was understaffed.

With regards to “Customer Concerns”:

The highest ranked concern of the citizen group 
was, “Ensure adequate staffing to meet the needs 

of the community”.



On behalf of the
McMinnville Police Department

Detective Section,

Thank you for your time.

(Questions?)



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Consider the Minutes of the March 22, 2016 Joint McMinnville City Council / Water & Light and Regular
City Council Meetings

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached minutes

Attachments
March 22, 2016 Minutes 



DRAFT

1

CITY OF McMINNVILLE
MINUTES OF JOINT MEETING of the McMinnville City Council 

And the McMinnville Water and Light Commission
Held at the Kent L. Taylor Civic Hall on Gormley Plaza

McMinnville, Oregon 

Tuesday, March 22, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 

Presiding: Rick Olson, Mayor

Recording: Rose A. Lorenzen, Recording Secretary

Councilors: Present

Remy Drabkin Kellie Menke
Scott Hill Alan Ruden
Kevin Jeffries Larry Yoder

Commissioners Present Absent

Mike Keyes Tom Tankersley Patrick Fuchs
Edward J. Gormley

Also present were City Manager Martha Meeker, City Attorney 
David Koch, Planning Director Doug Montgomery, Community 
Development Director Mike Bisset, Finance Director Marcia 
Baragary, Information Systems Director Scott Burke, Water 
and Light General Manager Kem Carr, Water and Light Finance 
Director Mark Carlton, Clerk of the Commission Mary Ann 
Nolan, Engineering and Operations Manager John Dietz, 
McMinnville Water & Light Attorney Dave Haugeberg, and 
members of the news media, Don Iler of the News Register, 
and Dave Adams of KLYC Radio.

AGENDA ITEM

CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 
6:08 p.m. and welcomed all in attendance.  

POLLING COMMISSION MEMBERS:  Clerk of the Commission Nolan 
polled the members of the Water and Light Commission.  It 
was noted that Commissioner Gormley had been excused from 
the meeting; it was also noted that Commissioner Fuchs 
absence was unexcused.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Councilor Drabkin led in the 
recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 

AMERESCO PRESENTATION:  City Manager Meeker introduced 
Ameresco Project Development Engineer Michael Pacella.  She 
noted that in November 2015 the City asked Ameresco to 
complete an energy savings audit of the City’s buildings 
and street lights.  

Mr. Pacella explained that Ameresco is one of six energy 
service companies approved by the State of Oregon.  The 
company performs energy audits to identify available energy 



DRAFT

2

conservation measures.  Following the audit, the City has 
the opportunity to contract with Ameresco to complete any 
or all of the identified energy upgrades.  

Mr. Pacella stated that Ameresco estimates energy usage, 
cost savings, and maintenance savings.  They then evaluate 
the cost benefits of upgrading the systems, and identify 
rebates and incentives.  He noted that there is a savings 
potential at the Community Center, Public Works, and the 
streets and parks lighting.  He pointed out that he had 
also spoken with representatives from McMinnville Water and 
Light.  He said that although he had found general support, 
the sticking point seemed to be the lack of an LED rate 
schedule identifying the maintenance and depreciation 
costs.  He encouraged the City and Water and Light to 
consider an energy savings performance contract (ESPC) 
because it is an established public procurement process.  
It has advantages in picking subcontractors and products; 
shows commitment to sustainability; and mitigates technical 
and financial risks for the City.  He advised that Ameresco 
is a responsible energy service company (ESCO).

Following Mr. Pacella’s presentation the members of both 
the City Council and the Water and Light Commission thanked 
him.  

Water and Light General Manager Carr led the discussion 
regarding the costs associated with street lighting.  He 
pointed out that Water and Light’s change out policy 
currently calls for replacing standard street lighting with 
LED lighting as burned out 100 watt high pressure sodium 
bulbs are replaced.  Following extensive discussion on this 
topic, City Manager Meeker stated that City staff wanted to 
let Water and Light know that discussions were taking place 
regarding an upgrade to LED street lighting.  She suggested 
that this topic be revisited in a year or so after 
discussions with Water and Light and the McMinnville 
Downtown Association have occurred.  Mayor Olson pointed 
out that he would like to see a “plan of attack” on this 
topic and other energy saving projects prior to beginning 
the next year’s budget.  Councilor Jeffries and Drabkin 
were in agreement.  

Redundant Water Supply:  Water and Light General Manager 
Carr spoke about the recently completed water rights 
purchase with International Paper in Albany.  He noted that 
water contracts to the cities of Carlton and Lafayette are 
in place, along with a redundant water supply.  

Councilor Menke stated that she felt it would be very 
beneficial to have a joint work session with Water and 
Light to hear more about this project.  General Manager 
Carr agreed.  Mayor Olson suggested the work session occur 
sometime in September.  The Work Session could concentrate 
on water supply, capacity, and long-term planning.  



DRAFT

3

Capital Projects:  Engineering and Operations Manager Dietz 
discussed Water and Light’s involvement in the City’s 
transportation bond projects – including the Hill Road 
project and the 5th and Alpine project.  He noted that these 
projects will require Water and Light to relocate the pole 
in the island between Adams and Baker Streets and to 
relocate the line from the Walnut City substation to the 
intersection at Hill Road.  Water and Light will install 
self-supporting steel poles in this area.  They will also 
install conduit along Alpine Street prior to road 
improvements in that area.  He itemized on-going projects 
Water and Light is working on with the City – including 
cable replacement, substation projects and expansions, and 
the addition of a second transformer.  He explained that 
the Ten-Year Plan includes these and other projects.  

Water System:  Mr. Dietz outlined current and upcoming 
water system projects, including the relocation of a 16-
inch water main on Hill Road; replacement of pipe on Alpine 
Avenue; and new 24- and 16-inch steel transmission lines 
coming from the water treatment plant.  He cautioned that 
in Zone Two – toward the west – with the elevation 
increases, the amount of water pressure in the pipes will 
not be sufficient to hold pressure and pumps will need to 
be installed.  He pointed out that Water and Light has 
several large projects coming within the next 10 to 15 
years.  

Public Employee Retirement System (PERS):  Finance 
Directors Carlton and Baragary briefed the City Council and 
Water and Light Commission members on what was occurring 
with PERS as a result of GASB 68.  They explained the pros 
and cons of separating the actuarial liability and rates of 
the two entities and also with joining the state and local 
government rate pool.  Joining the pool could smooth the 
rates between the entities; however, there is the potential 
for higher rates, initially for biennium 2017 – 2019.  

A thorough discussion of the PERS issues took place.  

Water and Electricity Rates:  General Manager Carr gave a 
brief update on potential rate increases.  Natural gas,
solar, and wind energy options were discussed. Mr. Carr 
noted that current carbon emissions are nearly non-
existent.  There would be an increase in the carbon 
footprint if natural gas, solar, and/or wind energy were 
used.  Although solar and wind energy is renewable, they 
are also less efficient than the hydro system currently in 
place.  

Conclusion:  Mr. Carr thanked the City Council for the 
opportunity to present an update on Water and Light’s 
current projects and activities.  

ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Olson adjourned the Water and Light 
Commission at 8:05 p.m.



DRAFT

4

CITY OF McMINNVILLE
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING of the McMinnville City Council 

Held at the Kent L. Taylor Civic Hall on Gormley Plaza
McMinnville, Oregon 

Tuesday, March 22, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 

Presiding: Rick Olson, Mayor

Recording: Rose A. Lorenzen, Recording Secretary

Councilors: Present

Remy Drabkin Kellie Menke
Scott Hill Alan Ruden
Kevin Jeffries Larry Yoder

Also present were City Manager Martha Meeker, City Attorney 
David Koch, Finance Director Marcia Baragary, Planning 
Director Doug Montgomery, Community Development Director 
Mike Bisset, Information Systems Director Scott Burke, and 
members of the news media, Don Iler of the News Register, 
and Dave Adams of KLYC Radio.

AGENDA ITEM

CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Olson called the Regular Meeting of 
the City Council to order at 8:09 p.m.

INVITATION TO CITIZENS FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  Mayor Olson 
asked for comments from citizens on topics not on the 
evening’s agenda.  Wesley Edwards, 1056 SE 1st Street, spoke 
on behalf of the South Downtown Neighborhood Association.  
He gave a brief update on the Association’s activities and 
requested that the Association be provided notice of 
Planning and City development activities.  

Mark Davis, 652 SE Washington Street, asked the City 
Council to be cognizant of light pollution when discussing 
street and building lighting.  

CONSIDER MINUTES:  Councilor Menke MOVED to approve the 
minutes of the December 22, 2015 Joint City Council and 
Planning Commission Meeting minutes; SECONDED by Councilor 
Ruden.  Motion PASSED unanimously.

2 PROCLAMATION:  Arbor Week.  Mayor Olson read the Arbor Week 
proclamation into the record.  Planning Director Montgomery 
stated that this is the 19th year in a row that the City has 
been recognized as a Tree City, having first been 
recognized in 1997.  He applauded the efforts of Public 
Works Superintendent David Renshaw and his team and the 



DRAFT

5

Landscape Review Committee.  Community Development Director 
Bisset stated that a great deal of the credit for such a 
successful program lies in the hands of Planning Director 
Montgomery who has followed this program from its infancy.  

3 RESOLUTIONS

3 a APPROVING TASK ORDER NO. 1 TO THE PERSONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT FOR THE DESIGN OF THE OREGON ROUTE 99W AT 2ND

STREET SIGNAL REPLACEMENT TRANSPORTATION BOND MEASURE 
PROJECT:  Community Development Director Bisset referenced 
his memorandum in the Council packet.  He explained that 
the Task Order amends the Personal Services Contract to 
include level 2 environmental site assessment work for the 
99W at 2nd Street project.  He advised that the work was not 
anticipated during development of the original scope of 
work, but is necessary due to site conditions revealed 
during the level 1 environmental site assessment work.  

Councilor Drabkin MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2016-13
approving Task Order No. 1 to the Personal Services 
Contract for the design of the Oregon Route 99W at 2nd

Street signal replacement transportation bond measure 
project; SECONDED by Councilor Ruden.  Motion PASSED 
unanimously.  

4 ADVICE / INFORMATION ITEMS

4 a and b COUNCIL AND DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS:  No Council or 
Department Reports were heard.

5 EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) to 
consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties 
of a public body with regard to current litigation or 
litigation likely to be filed, Mayor Olson called the 
Executive Session to order at 8:41 p.m.  

City Attorney Koch briefed the Council regarding the legal 
nature of the matter.  Following thorough discussion of the 
topic with the Council, Mr. Koch stated that he had a sense 
of the direction Council would like to move.

Mayor Olson adjourned the Executive Session at 8:57 p.m.

6 ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Olson adjourned the meeting at 9:00 
p.m. 

Rose A. Lorenzen, Recording Secretary



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 32:  Declaring the City's election to receive state revenues

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached resolution.

Attachments
Rev Share Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 32

A Resolution declaring the City’s election to receive certain state shared 
revenues.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1.  Pursuant to ORS 221.770, the City hereby elects to receive state 
shared revenues for fiscal year 2016 – 2017.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular 
meeting held the 28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY



I certify that a public hearing before the Budget Committee was held on May 18, 
2016 and a public hearing before the City Council was held on June 14 2016, 
giving citizens an opportunity to comment on use of State Revenue Sharing.

______________________________________
CITY RECORDER



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 33:  Certifying provision of municipal services by the City of McMinnville as
required by ORS 221.760

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached resolution.

Attachments
Rev Shar Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 33

A Resolution certifying provision of municipal services by the City of McMinnville 
as required by ORS 221.760 

RECITALS:

ORS 221.760 provides that a city located within a county that has more than 
100,000 inhabitants according to the most recent federal decennial census must provide 
four or more municipal services in order to qualify to receive revenues from cigarette, 
gas, and liquor taxes (Shared Revenues).  These revenues are provided for in ORS 
323.455, 366.785 to 366.820, and 471.805.

The services to be considered are:

1) Police protection
2) Fire protection
3) Street construction, maintenance, lighting
4) Sanitary sewer
5) Storm sewer
6) Planning, zoning, subdivision control
7) One or more utility services

To assist the state officer responsible for determining the eligibility of the City to 
receive these revenues in accordance with ORS 221.760, the City may certify its 
eligibility.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON as follows:

1. The City certifies that it provides the following municipal services as 
enumerated in ORS 221.760(1):

1) Police protection—Yes 
2) Fire protection—Yes 
3) Street construction, maintenance, lighting—McMinnville Water and Light 

provides lighting
4) Sanitary sewer—Yes 
5) Storm sewer—Yes 
6) Planning, zoning, subdivision control—Yes 

2. This Resolution will take effect immediately upon passage and shall continue 
in full force and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting 
held the 28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 



Resolution No. 2016 - 33 2

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR
Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 34:  Extending the City of McMinnville's workers compensation coverage to
volunteers of the City of McMinnville and repealing Resolution No. 2015-30

BACKGROUND:

Attachments
Vol Work Comp Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 34

A Resolution extending workers’ compensation coverage to City of McMinnville 
volunteers

RECITALS:

The City of McMinnville’s insurance provider is CityCounty Insurance Services (CIS).  
CIS provides coverage to City volunteers under certain circumstances.  Adoption of a resolution 
setting out the information below is a prerequisite to coverage.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON as follows:

Pursuant to ORS 656.031, workers’ compensation coverage will be provided to the 
classes of volunteers listed in this resolution, noted on CIS payroll schedule, and verified at 
audit:

1. Public safety volunteers  

An assumed monthly wage of $1600 per month will be used for public safety volunteers in 
the following volunteer positions:

Police reserve
Firefighter
Police Citizen Emergency Response Team members

2. Police and Fire non-public safety volunteers

The assumed monthly wage for the following Police and Fire volunteers is as specified for 
each:

Parking and code enforcement - $800 per month
Police chaplains – minimum wage
Fire and Life Safety – minimum wage

3. Volunteer boards, commissions and councils for the performance of 
administrative duties.  

An aggregate assumed annual wage of $2,500 will be used per each volunteer board, 
commission, or council for the performance of administrative duties.  The covered bodies 
are specified on Attachment A, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution by this 
reference.



Resolution No. 2016 - 34 2

4. Non-public safety volunteers

All non-public safety volunteers listed below will track their hours and Oregon minimum 
wage will serve as assumed wage for  both premium and benefits calculations.  CIS will 
assign the appropriate classification code according to the type of volunteer work being 
performed.

Parks and Recreation, including Kids on the Block (KOB)
Senior Center 
Public Works
Library
Park Watch

5. Public Events

Volunteers at the following public events will be covered under workers’ compensation 
coverage using verified hourly Oregon minimum wage as basis for premium and/or benefit 
calculation:

Mayor’s Charity Ball
Annual triathlon
City sponsored community events

6. Community Service Volunteers/Inmates

Pursuant to ORS 656.041, workers’ compensation coverage will be provided to community 
service volunteers commuting their sentences by performing work authorized by McMinnville 
Municipal Court.

Oregon minimum wage tracked hourly will be used for both premium and benefit 
calculations, verifiable by providing a copy of the roster and/or sentencing agreement from 
the court.  

7. Other volunteers

Volunteer exposures not addressed here will have workers’ compensation coverage if, prior 
to the onset of the work:

a. City provides advance written notice to CIS underwriting requesting the 
coverage,

b. CIS approves the coverage and date of coverage, and
c. CIS provides written confirmation of coverage.



Resolution No. 2016 - 34 3

8. Rosters
The City will maintain verifiable rosters for all volunteers including volunteer name, date
of service, and hours of service and will make the rosters available at the time of a claim 
or audit to verify coverage.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting held the 
28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR

Approved as to Form:

CITY ATTORNEY



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 35:  Adopting a new fee schedule for ambulance services provided by the City of
McMinnville and repealing Resolution No. 2015-32

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached resolution and contract

Attachments
Amb Rate Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 35

A Resolution adopting a new fee schedule for ambulance services
provided by the City of McMinnville and repealing Resolution No. 2015-32

RECITALS:

Generally, it has been the City’s policy to increase ambulance rates each year by 
the amount of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the Portland-Salem 
metro area.  This aligns rates with the increase in the cost of providing 
ambulance services.  Also, raising rates each year helps avoid the need to 
impose significant rate increases to “catch up” for years when ambulance rates 
were not increased. The CPI increase for ambulance rates which is applicable to 
the 2016 – 2017 fiscal year is 0.3 percent.

In addition, reimbursements from the state and federal government for 
ambulance services provided by the City continue to be substantially less than 
the cost of providing ambulance services.  

Therefore, it is appropriate to raise rates for ambulance services to enable the 
City to meet the requirements for providing emergency ambulance services for 
the City’s Ambulance Service Area (ASA) and to minimize General Fund support 
of the ambulance service.

The following emergency ambulance service fee schedule is submitted for 
adoption. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. The fee schedule for ambulance service shall be as follows:

Base rate for each call:

Within City:  Advance life support $1,685.00
Basic life support $1,685.00

Outside City: Advance life support $1,896.00
Basic life support $1,896.00

Transfers: Specialty Care Transport $2,257.00

Medical Aid: $ 476.00

Mileage: $ 23.00

Time Pay Contract Monthly Fee:                             $5.00



Resolution No. 2016 - 35 2

Waiting Time:  $100 per hour or fraction thereof.

All medications and nonreusable supplies are included in base rate.

2. The fee schedule for Fire Med subscriptions shall be as follows:

Within City: $70 per family

Outside City: $90 per family

3. Resolution No. 2015-32 is hereby repealed in its entirety.

4. This Resolution shall take effect July 1, 2016, and shall continue in full 
force and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular 
meeting held the 28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR

Approved as to Form:

CITY ATTORNEY



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 36:  Providing for and approving a form of contract by and between the City of
McMinnville, Oregon and the McMinnville Rural Fire Protection District

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached resolution and contract

Attachments
MRFPD Resolution 
Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 36

A Resolution providing for and approving a form of contract by and between the 
City of McMinnville, Oregon and the McMinnville Rural Fire Protection District.

RECITALS:

The present contract between the City of McMinnville and the McMinnville Rural 
Fire Protection District (MRFPD) expires June 30, 2016, and it is necessary that a new 
contract be executed.  The new contract will be in full force and effect for a period up to 
and including June 30, 2017.

The City of McMinnville and the McMinnville Rural Fire Protection District have 
mutually agreed to the renewal of the fire protection service contract.  The passage of 
the local option levy has allowed the District to increase the contractual amount by three 
percent.  

The City of McMinnville has the necessary equipment to furnish rural fire 
protection to the area surrounding and adjacent to the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That a contract prepared by the City Attorney, and submitted to the Council 
of the City of McMinnville on the 28th day of June 2016, be entered into by 
and between the City of McMinnville and the McMinnville Rural Fire 
Protection District for the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017.  The 
contract provides that the City shall furnish fire protection to the District and 
the inhabitants of the District.  The contract, in the amount of $347,316.00, 
is hereby approved and accepted as submitted.  Payment shall be made as 
follows:

$173,658.00 by December 15, 2016
$ 86,829.00 by March 15, 2017
$ 86,829.00 by June 15, 2017

2. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the contract in 
duplicate and to deliver one executed copy thereof to the McMinnville Rural 
Fire Protection District and to retain one executed copy thereof to be kept 
on file in the office of the City Recorder.

3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall 
continue in full force and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting 
held the 28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 36 2

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR

Approved as to Form:

CITY ATTORNEY



- 1 -

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, authorized by ORS 190.010, is made this ___ day of June, 
2016, by and between the CITY OF MCMINNVILLE, an Oregon municipal corporation, 
hereinafter referred to as “CITY”, and the MCMINNVILLE RURAL FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT (MRFPD), an Oregon municipal corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as “DISTRICT”, the promises and agreements of each being in consideration 
of the promises and agreements of the other.

The parties agree as follows:

1. Term:  The term of this Agreement is one (1) year, beginning on the 1st day of 
July, 2016 and ending on the 30th day of June, 2017.

2. Scope of Services:  

A. The CITY agrees to provide fire protection throughout the DISTRICT, as 
required.  In providing fire protection throughout the DISTRICT, the 
CITY, through its Fire Department, shall:

1. Provide fire suppression throughout the DISTRICT.
2. Provide the use of available pumpers, tenders and ladder equipment, 

and all other necessary equipment, as well as sufficient personnel to 
operate said apparatus, subject to the condition that reasonably 
sufficient apparatus and personnel shall remain within the CITY to 
assure adequate fire protection to the CITY.  If the demands of the 
DISTRICT exceed the available apparatus and personnel which the 
CITY can provide, the CITY agrees to invoke then current mutual aid 
agreements as may be necessary to supplement the CITY’S apparatus 
and personnel.

3. Review building and construction plans within the DISTRICT.  
a. Request that Yamhill County submit all plans for new 

developments/construction in the DISTRICT requiring a “fire-
and-life-safety” plan check to CITY for review.  Plans will be 
reviewed for fire access, fire-flow, built-in-fire protection, road 
grades, and other fire code issues.

b. Perform field inspections to ensure new development and 
construction is accomplished in accordance with reviewed 
plans as regards those items listed in (3)(a) above.

4. Investigate all fires within the DISTRICT to determine cause.
5. Initiate and sustain a program of study, reasonably calculated to result 

in the formulation and necessary revision of operating procedures 
necessary to maintain a high level of fire protection within the 
DISTRICT.

6. Review and propose fire codes and ordinances for adoption by the 
DISTRICT.



- 2 -

7. Investigate all fire code complaints; perform on-site inspection to 
determine validity of complaint.

8. Perform inspections as required by a priority plan adopted by the 
DISTRICT and agreed to by the CITY.  Conduct home fire-safety 
inspections upon request.

9. Enforce codes, ordinances, and regulations.
10. Maintain, for the DISTRICT, adequate records of activity as may be 

required by the Insurance Services Office and the Oregon State Fire 
Marshal.

11. Participate in mutual aid agreements with the fire protection districts
which are contiguous with the MRFPD and establish and maintain an 
automatic aid agreement in areas in which service might be improved 
by such an agreement, so long as it is in the best interests of all parties 
to do so.

12. Subject to the provisions of Section 2A of this agreement, the CITY 
shall maintain and operate an adequate fire protection service in the 
DISTRICT.  CITY shall use due diligence to maintain continuous and 
uninterrupted service.  Under no circumstances is the CITY liable to 
the DISTRICT for interruption or failure of service caused by acts of 
nature, unavoidable accident, or other circumstances beyond the 
control of the CITY through no fault of its own.

13. The CITY shall operate the fire protection program authorized by this 
Agreement twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.

14. The CITY shall take all reasonable steps to maintain all of its trucks, 
equipment and the entire system in a good state of repair, and shall at 
all times conduct its operation under this Agreement in a safe and 
professional manner so as not to present a danger to the public or 
DISTRICT.

15. The CITY shall consider the needs of the DISTRICT when designing 
and purchasing fire apparatus, with specific regard to hill climbing 
ability, maneuverability, foam production and compatibility with rural 
fire applications.

16. The DISTRICT shall have the right to use the CITY Fire Department
conference room for the DISTRICT’S regularly scheduled meetings, 
as well as specially scheduled meetings, given sufficient advance 
notice.

17. The CITY shall assist the Board of the DISTRICT in recommending 
the site for and development of future station needs as may be required 
in the DISTRICT.

18. The CITY shall provide public education as follows:
a. Conduct a Fire Prevention Open House each October, with 

announcement flyers sent to all students in all schools in the 
MRFPD area, including private schools.

b. Solicit opportunities to give fire safety education programs to 
all DISTRICT neighborhood associations on an annual basis.

c. Mail out one newsletter per year to all rural district residents 
with pertinent fire safety information.



- 3 -

19. The CITY shall provide fire suppression training and provide for fire 
suppression preparedness as follows;

a. Equip all operations personnel with wild land fire fighting 
apparel.

b. Conduct training for all personnel in wild land fire behavior 
and urban/forest interface strategy and tactics prior to fire 
season.

c. Identify locations throughout the DISTRICT where water 
supply might be established or improved.

d. Train on rural water supply operations, with surrounding rural 
districts, to reduce turnaround time and improve water supply 
procedures in rural area.

e. Maintain a supply of forestry type fire suppression foam.
f. Develop a countywide major fire event plan to be implemented 

as a component of the City’s and County’s disaster plan.
g. Maintain nominal staffing (call back) and situation status 

management plan to ensure adequate fire defense resources in 
the event of simultaneous responses which may deplete on-
duty resources.

B. The DISTRICT agrees that the CITY shall not be required to duplicate 
those efforts or services regularly provided by other governmental 
agencies; nor shall the CITY be required to provide any services which 
are, by law, reserved for another government agency.

C. The CITY agrees to provide the DISTRICT with regular reports based on 
the fire protection services provided in Section 2A (see above) of this 
Agreement.  Also, a copy of the annual audit of the City of McMinnville 
shall be provided to the DISTRICT.  The DISTRICT agrees to provide a 
copy of the annual audit of the DISTRICT to the CITY.

D. The CITY shall keep the DISTRICT informed of all new developments, 
issues or concerns affecting the fire operations of the CITY as they may 
relate to the DISTRICT.  The CITY shall endeavor to notify the 
DISTRICT in advance of any public announcement concerning this 
Agreement that is to be made.  The DISTRICT shall endeavor to notify the 
CITY of any developments or uses concerning the Agreement in advance 
of any public announcement on the subject.

E. At all times during the term of this Agreement, the CITY and DISTRICT 
shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of 
the United States of America and the State of Oregon, including all 
agencies and subdivisions thereof.

3. Compensation:  The DISTRICT agrees to pay the CITY during the term of this 
Agreement the sum of $ 347,316 for fire protection during fiscal year 2016-2017.

A. The CITY and DISTRICT shall retain the right to renegotiate the service 
level and/or service cost as of the 30th day of June, 2017, by giving 180 
days’ prior written notice to the other party (see Sections 4 and 5).



- 4 -

B. The DISTRICT agrees to make payments to the CITY according to the 
following schedule unless these funds are not made available by the 
county tax collector.

Payment # Due Date Amount

1 Dec. 15 $ 173,658
2 Mar. 15 $    86,829
3 June 15 $    86,829

C. The DISTRICT agrees that it will levy taxes during the term of this 
Agreement sufficient to provide the payments required to be made to the 
CITY during this Agreement.

D. It is understood and agreed by the parties that no director, officer or other 
representative of the DISTRICT shall be individually liable for any 
payments due to the CITY.

E. If, as a result of the tax limitation, the CITY is unable to provide the level 
of service described in Section 2 above, or the DISTRICT is unable to pay 
for the current level of services, then the parties agree to renegotiate in 
good faith the amount of compensation to be paid to the CITY for the 
services provided.

4. Future Fee Increases: The CITY and DISTRICT agree that the fee for each 
future year will be increased three percent per annum.  The parties agree to enter 
into negotiations regarding a change in the three percent increase or any other 
change in the fee when requested by either party so long as said request to 
negotiate is given not less than 180 days prior to the expiration of the Agreement.  
In the event negotiations have not been completed by June 30, 2017, the CITY 
may decline to provide the services described in Section 2 of this Agreement.

5. Renegotiation/Termination/Renewal:  This Agreement shall be renewed unless 
CITY or DISTRICT gives written notice to the other party 180 days prior to the 
expiration of this Agreement, informing the other party that the notice-giving 
party wishes to renegotiate the terms of the Agreement or to terminate the 
Agreement.

A. If notification of the intent to renegotiate this Agreement has been given, 
the parties agree that, prior to June 30, 2017, they will negotiate in good 
faith concerning the terms of this Agreement.

B. If the DISTRICT has notified the CITY of its intent to renegotiate this 
Agreement and a successful renegotiation has not been completed before 
June 30, 2017, this Agreement shall be automatically extended for 90 days 
to allow continuing negotiations.  This Agreement may be extended 
further by mutual agreement for additional increments of up to 90 days 
each.

C. If notification of the intent to terminate this Agreement has been given, the 
Agreement shall terminate on the 30th day of June 2017. If both parties 



- 5 -

agree in writing, a termination pursuant to this section may be effective at 
an earlier date.

6. Rules of Construction/Interpretation:
A. Unless otherwise specifically prescribed in this Agreement , the following 

provisions shall govern its interpretation and construction:
1. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the 

present tense include the future, words in the plural number 
include the singular number, and words in the singular number 
include the plural number.

2. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. Neither the CITY nor
the DISTRICT shall be relieved of its obligation to comply 
promptly with any provisions of this Agreement by any failure of 
the other party to enforce prompt compliance with any of its 
provisions.

3. Every duty and every act to be performed by either party imposes 
an obligation of good faith on the party to perform such.

B. All notices, reports or demands required to be given in writing under this 
Agreement shall be deemed to be given a) when delivered personally to 
the person designated below, or b) when three (3) days have elapsed after 
it is deposited in the United States mail in a sealed envelope, registered or 
certified mail, postage prepaid, or c) on the next business day when sent 
by express mail, all addressed to the party to whom the notice is being 
given:

Fire Chief Rich Leipfert,
City of McMinnville,
175 NE First St,
McMinnville, Oregon 97128

Steve Leonard
Chairman, McMinnville Rural Fire Protection District,
175 NE First St,
McMinnville, Oregon 97128

C. Neither the CITY nor the DISTRICT shall be relieved of its obligation to 
comply with any of the provisions of this Agreement by reason of any 
failure of the other party to enforce prompt compliance.

D. The paragraph captions and headings in this Agreement are for 
convenience and reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way 
the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

E. For purposes of determining time of performance, time shall be computed 
so as to exclude the first and include the last day of the prescribed period 
of time.  When the last day of the period falls on Saturday, Sunday or a 
legal holiday, the next working day shall be construed to be the last day of 
the prescribed period.



- 6 -

F. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed to create in 
the DISTRICT any right, interest or ownership in any real or personal 
property used by the CITY for the performance of this Agreement.

7. Hold Harmless:  The parties agree that neither the CITY nor any of the CITY’S 
officers, agents, representatives, employees or volunteers shall be liable to the 
DISTRICT, or any owner within the DISTRICT, or any other person, for any 
claim for injury or damage or any loss or expense growing out of or resulting 
directly or indirectly from the performance of this Agreement, including but not 
limited to, a claim for alleged failure to provide fire fighting or fire protection 
apparatus or services, or for court costs and attorneys’ fees (including an appeal 
filed in connection with any legal proceedings arising out of this Agreement).

8. Discrimination:  The parties agree not to discriminate on the basis of race, 
religion, color, sex, marital status, familial status, national origin, age, mental or 
physical disability, sexual orientation or source of income in the performance of 
this Agreement.

9. Waiver of Breach:  A waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement 
by either party shall not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same 
or any other provision of this Agreement.

City of McMinnville McMinnville Rural Fire
an Oregon Municipal Protection District, an
Corporation Oregon Municipal Corporation

By: ________________________ By: ________________________
        Rick Olson, Mayor Steve Leonard, Chairman

Date: _____________________ Date: _______________________

Approved as to form:

___________________________
David Koch, City Attorney



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 37:  Appointing McMinnville's Principal Planner as the successor to the current
Project Certifying Officer and Environmental Review Certifying Officer for the 2014 City of McMinnville's
Housing Rehabilitation Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) project

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached resolution

Attachments
CDBG Officer Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 37

A Resolution appointing McMinnville’s Principal Planner as the successor to the current 
Project Certifying Officer and Environmental Review Certifying Officer for the 2014 City of 
McMinnville’s Housing Rehabilitation Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) project.

RECITALS:

The City of McMinnville currently has an open Housing Rehabilitation CDBG project that 
was awarded in December of 2014, and the city is required to designate both a Project 
Certifying Officer and an Environmental Certifying Officer.  The designated Project Certifying 
Officer is responsible for signing required contract and other documents associated with the 
grant.  The Environmental Certifying Officer is responsible for signing all environmental 
documents associated with the grant.

The current Project and Environmental Certifying Officer for this grant is retiring from 
service to the City of McMinnville.  To fill this vacancy, the City Council wishes to appoint its 
Principal Planner, Ron Pomeroy, as the successor to these positions.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MCMINNILLE, OREGON as follows:

1.  The City Council hereby appoints Principal Planner Ron Pomeroy as the Project 
Certifying Officer and the Environmental Certifying Officer for the 2014 McMinnville 
Housing Rehabilitation Grant Project.

EFFECTIVE DATE

The effective date of this Resolution shall be July 1, 2016.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting held the 
28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 38:  Appointing the Principal Planner as the successor to the current board
member Planning Director Doug Montgomery to the Yamhill County Affordable Housing Corporation's
(YCAHC) regional Housing Rehabilitation Collaborative and board of directors

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached resolution

Attachments
YCAHC Board Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 38

A Resolution supporting the City of McMinnville’s ongoing participation as a member of 
the Yamhill County Affordable Housing Corporation’s (YCAHC) regional Housing Rehabilitation 
Collaborative and board of directors, and to appoint the Principal Planner as the successor to 
the current board member Planning Director Doug Montgomery.  

RECITALS:
The Yamhill County Housing Rehabilitation program and the resulting county wide 

regional collaborative began in 1980 with its first Housing Rehabilitation Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) award.

The City of McMinnville has participated in the YCAHC Board since 1991 when the city 
received its first Housing Rehabilitation CDBG award.

The program continues to assist homeowner’s county wide with the revolving loan fund
that has resulted from past CDBG awards.  This revolving fund currently has almost 
$4,000.000.00 in receivables that are loaned back out to families for Housing Rehabilitation or 
other programs specifically focused on sustaining affordable housing in our region.

The YCAHC Board makes all final decisions regarding the expenditures and use of 
these revolving loan funds.  

Formal appointment of the YCAHC board member by the City Council is required.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MCMINNILLE, OREGON as follows:

1.  The City of McMinnville continues to support efforts to achieve affordable housing 
solutions for all of its residents.

2.  The City of McMinnville supports the efforts of the YCAHC programs and wishes to 
continue participating in the regional collaborative.

3.  The City Council hereby appoints Principal Planner Ron Pomeroy to succeed current 
board member Planning Director Doug Montgomery as the member of the YCAHC 
Board representing the City of McMinnville.

EFFECTIVE DATE

The effective date of this Resolution shall be July 1, 2016.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting held the 
28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes:  

Nays:  



Resolution No. 2016 - 38 2

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject: Renewal of Medical Director Contract
Submitted For: Rich Leipfert, Fire Chief  From: Rich Leipfert, Fire Chief

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 39:  Renewal of Contract for Medical Director Services with John Heiser, M.D.

BACKGROUND:
Oregon State requires agencies that provide Emergency Medical Services to operate under the direction
of a Medical Director or Supervising Physician. John Heiser, M.D. had been the Medical Director for the
McMinnville Fire Department since 2006.  This is a renewal of a contract for his services for FY 2016/17
for the amount of $10,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
The amount of the contract has been budgeted for in the FY 2016/17 budget. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve contract as presented. 

Attachments
Medical Dir Resolution 
Contract for Medical Director Professional Services 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 39

A Resolution awarding the contract for professional servicess to John 
Heiser M.D. to serve as the Medical Director or Supervising Physician for the 
McMinnville Fire Department for fiscal year 2016/17.

RECITALS:  

Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 682 and Oregon Administrative Rules, 
Chapter 847, Division 35 requires agencies proving Emergency Medical Services 
to receive professional  medical oversight with regard to the clinical operation of 
emergency medical services and,

John Heiser MD has successfully been providing those services under 
contract to the City since 2006.

The City of McMinnville and John Heiser M.D. have agreed to the contract 
amount of $10,000 annual for services outlined in the contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That renewal of the Professional Services Contract with John Heiser, M.D. 
for Medical Director/Supervising Physician services, in the amount of 
$10,000, is hereby approved.

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the contract 
with John Heiser, MD. 

3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall 
continue in full force and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting 
held the 28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY



CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
MEDICAL DIRECTOR/ SUPERVISING PHYSICIAN

This agreement for Professional Services is entered into between the City of McMinnville, a 
municipal corporation, acting by and through the McMinnville Fire Department hereinafter 
referred to as ("Agency") and John Heiser, M.D., practicing at St. Vincent's Hospital hereinafter 
referred to as ("Supervising Physician").

RECITALS:

1. Agency wishes to engage a Physician to act as the McMinnville Fire Department's Supervising 
Physician to provide the Agency with professional medical oversight with regard to the clinical 
operation of emergency medical services.

2. Dr. Heiser, M.D., serves as an emergency physician and has professional skill and expertise 
which would benefit the City.

3. Supervising Physician agrees to comply with the requirements of Oregon Revised Statutes 
Chapter 682 and Oregon Administrative Rules, Chapter 847, Division 35. The specific services 
anticipated by this contract are listed in Attachment A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Supervising Physician's agrees: to perform the following functions as the McMinnville Fire 
Department's Supervising Physician:
a. Establish, maintain and reassess the medical protocol and procedures used and drugs stored 

for use by Agency's EMS Providers.
b. Monitor the quality of care delivered by the Agency's EMS Providers.
c. Monitor the continuing education of Agency’s EMS Providers.
d. Review problems that may arise in the field during the performance of emergency medical 

care by EMS Providers.
e. Review and authorize any forms, applications, etc., that must be sent to the Oregon State 

Board of Medical Examiners or the Oregon State Health Authority, EMS and Trauma 
Services.

f. Comply with all applicable laws and rules of the Oregon Health Authority, EMS Trauma 
Services and Oregon Board of Medical Examiners regarding supervising physicians.

g. Provide supervising physician duties to Yamhill, Carlton, Lafayette, Dayton and Amity Fire 
districts under the umbrella of McMinnville ASA 2.

h. Perform the other duties as provided in Job Description -Supervising Physician, which is 
attached to this contract as Attachment A and by this reference, incorporated.

2. Payment by Agency:  Agency agrees to pay Supervising Physician the total sum of $10,000.00 
per year to perform the services described in this contract.  The annual fee of $10,000 will be 
split into $5,000 payments twice a year at the middle and end of each fiscal year.   Any 
extraordinary expenses, such as related training or conferences, may be shared by mutual 
contract of the parties and contract as to sharing will be ·reached prior to incurring expenses.

3. Terms of Contract: Supervising Physician agrees to provide the services described in this 
contract from July 1, 2016, until termination of the contract in accordance with Paragraph 7, or 
a successor agreement has been agreed upon by the parties.  At any time during the period of 
this contract, either party may request to negotiate any article of the contract by submitting that 
request in writing to the other party.



4. ·Supervising Physician as Agent of the City:  The City and Supervising Physician agree that 
when performing the duties of this contract, the Supervising Physician is acting as an agent of 
the City.  Subject to the limitations of the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims, the 
City agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Supervising Physician. The purpose of 
this provision is to make the Supervising Physician, John Heiser, an agent of the City of 
McMinnville for the purposes of the Oregon Tort Claims Act and as required by the CIS 
Insurance Services.

5. Sub-Contracts: Supervising Physician shall not employ any other person or assign, subcontract 
or in any other manner delegate his duties under this contract without prior written approval 
from Agency.

6. Access to Records: Agency shall have access to the books, documents, papers and records of 
Supervising Physician which are pertinent to this contract.

7. Termination: Either party may terminate this contract during its term upon sixty (60) day 
written notice delivered to the other party.

8. Attorney Fees and Court Costs: If any suit, action or other proceeding, or an appeal therefrom, 
is instituted to establish, obtain enforce or compel any right or resulting from
this contract, the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the 
adverse party, in addition to costs and disbursements, such additional sums as the cost, both trial 
and appellate, may adjudge reasonable as attorney's fees.

9. Notices:  The address of the parties to this contract for purposes of notices permitted or required 
under this contract are as follows:

AGENCY
Rich Leipfert, Fire Chief 
City of McMinnville     
175 NE First Street
McMinnville, OR 97128

PHYSICIAN
John Heiser, M.D.
20900 Grand Island Loop SE 
Dayton, Oregon 97114

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have affixed their signature.

City of McMinnville Supervising Physician

Martha Meeker, City Manager Dr. John Heiser, M.D.
Date: Date:

APPROVED AS TO FORM

_________________________________
David Koch, City Attorney



ATTACHMENT A
JOB DESCRIPTION -SUPERVISING PHYSICIAN

The Supervising Physician is responsible for:

 Developing medical protocols for the MFD EMS system.  S/he should ensure that these 
medical protocols are frequently reviewed, reassessed, and updated as necessary.  S/he 
should also ensure that these protocols are based on accepted facts.

 Establishing, maintaining, and reassessing the medical protocols and procedures related to 
drugs stored for use by the EMS personnel.

 Monitoring the quality of emergency medical care rendered by the EMS personnel.

 Reporting the status of the MFD EMS system to the Fire Chief.

 Reviewing any problems that may arise in the performance of emergency medical care by 
EMS personnel.

 Monitoring all aspects of quality control within the MFD EMS system as set forth in the 
MFD Quality Assurance program, including individual EMS provider knowledge, skills, and 
performance.

 The Physician Supervisor has no direct supervisory authority to hire or fire personnel.

 Ensuring that EMS dispatching for the MFD EMS system is current, accessible, and efficient.  
S/he must ensure that there is a system to monitor response times, instructions given over the 
phone, and the priority dispatch method that is used.

 Monitoring in-service continuing education for the MFD EMS system.  S/he must ensure that 
the in-service program meets all state requirements and provides useful material for all EMS 
providers.  

 Being active in local, state, regional, and national EMS organizations.  It is understood that 
s/he may belong to these professional organizations and participate as time allows.

 Being aware of disaster preparedness programs within the region.

 Overseeing the certification/recertification process for EMS providers in the MFD EMS 
system.

 Serving as a liaison with the Medical Examiner’s Office.

 Complying with all applicable laws and administrative rules of the Oregon Board of Medical 
Examiners and the Oregon Health Authority EMS and Trauma Services regarding 
Supervising Physicians’ requirements, responsibilities, and EMS providers’ scope of 
practice.



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject: 5th Street construction contract

award resolution
From: Mike Bisset, Community

Development Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 – 40:  A Resolution awarding the contract for the NE 5th Street Improvements
Project, Project 2015-10.
 

BACKGROUND:
At 2:00pm on June 9, 2016, the bids for the NE 5th Street Improvements Project, Project 2015-10 were
publicly opened and read aloud. Three bids were received and the results are tabulated as follows:
 
Haworth Inc.                                $1,927,025.05
Kodiak Pacific Construction        $2,266,266.00
Westech Construction, Inc.         $2,425,408.75
 
The bids were checked for completeness, including a review of the following: 

Was the bid submitted, on time, in a properly sealed and labeled envelope?
Was the bid form properly filled out and executed?
Were addendums acknowledged?
Did the bid include a 10% Bid Bond?
Was the 1st tier subcontractor disclosure form submitted as required?

 
All three of the bids met these requirements. The bid from Haworth Inc. contained mathematical errors,
as well as irregularities in the bid form quantities. These errors and irregularities were deemed minor in
nature. The City reserves the right to waive any irregularities, and to accept the bid deemed in the best
interest of the City. Therefore, the Bid from Haworth Inc. in the amount of $1,927,025.05 was deemed to
be the lowest responsible and responsive bid.  Detailed breakdowns of the received bids are on file in the
Engineering Department.
 
The NE 5th Street Improvement Project is one of five Capital Improvement Projects identified in the
McMinnville Transportation Bond approved by voters in 2014. This project will include upgrades to NE
5th Street between NE Adams Street and NE Lafayette Avenue to improve downtown traffic flow and
pedestrian safety. Improvements include new traffic signals, intersection curb extensions and pavement
surfacing. This project also will provide an alternate connection to the west side of town to alleviate
congestion on 1st Street, 2nd Street and 3rd Street. Intersection improvements and signal installations



along NE 5th Street are planned at NE Adams Street, NE Baker Street, NE Evans Street and NE
Lafayette Avenue. Improved sidewalks and crosswalks will promote bike and pedestrian movements
throughout the corridor.
 
Funding for this project is included in the proposed FY17 Transportation Bond Fund (45), and the work is
scheduled to commence in July 2016.
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council award the contract for the NE 5th Street Improvements Project,
Project 2015-10, to Haworth Inc. at a total cost of $1,927,025.05.
 

Attachments
5th St Bid Award Resolution 
PROJECT INFORMATION SHEET 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 40

A Resolution awarding the contract for the NE 5th Street Improvements Project, 
Project 2015-10.

RECITALS:

At 2:00pm on June 9, 2016, three bids were received, opened, and publicly read 
for the construction of the NE 5th Street Improvements Project.  

The bid from Haworth Inc, in the amount of $1,927,025.05, was deemed to be 
the lowest responsible and responsive bid.

The NE 5th Street Improvement Project is one of five Capital Improvement 
Projects identified in the McMinnville Transportation Bond approved by voters in 2014. 
This project includes upgrades to NE 5th Street between NE Adams Street and NE 
Lafayette Avenue to improve downtown traffic flow and pedestrian safety. Improvements 
include new traffic signals, intersection curb extensions and pavement surfacing.
Intersection improvements and signal installations along NE 5th Street are planned at 
NE Adams Street, NE Baker Street, NE Evans Street and NE Lafayette Avenue.

Funding for this project is included in the proposed FY17 Transportation Bond 
Fund (45), and the work is scheduled to commence in July 2016.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That entry into a contract between the City of McMinnville and Haworth Inc.
for the construction of the NE 5th Street Improvements Project, in the amount 
of $1,927,025.05, and with a substantial completion date of May 31, 2017, is 
hereby approved.

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the contract 
for the NE 5th Street Improvements Project, Project 2015-10.

3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall 
continue in full force and effect until modified, revoked, or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a meeting held the 
28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR
Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY



CONSTRUCTION COMING SOON 
Construction along NE 5th Street is anticipated to begin in July 2016. This construction project  

will provide much needed improvements at multiple intersections along NE 5th Street to improve downtown traffic 

flow. Construction may cause traffic delays at various times during construction. 

 

NE 5th Street Improvement Project 

ABOUT THIS PROJECT 
The NE 5th Street Improvement Project is one of five Capital  Improvement Projects identified in the McMinnville Transpor-

tation Bond. This project will include upgrades to NE 5th Street between NE Adams Street and NE Lafayette Avenue to 

improve downtown traffic flow and pedestrian safety. Improvements include new traffic signals, intersection curb        

extensions and pavement  surfacing. This project also will provide an alternate connection to downtown to alleviate 

congestion on 1st Street, 2nd Street and 3rd Street.  Intersection improvements and signal installations along NE 5th 

Street are planned at NE Adams Street, NE Baker Street, NE Evans Street and NE Lafayette Avenue. Improved sidewalks 

and crosswalks will promote bike and pedestrian movements throughout the corridor.  

WHERE? 

NE 5th Street & NE Adams Street: New traffic signal with signalized cross-walks will improve traffic flow and   

pedestrian safety.  Reconstructed ramps at all four corners will improve pedestrian access and be compliant 

to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

NE 5th Street & NE Baker Street: New traffic signal with signalized cross-walks will improve traffic flow and     

pedestrian safety.  Reconstructed ADA compliant ramps at all four corners will improve pedestrian access. 

NE 5th Street & NE Davis Street: Curb extensions, ADA compliant ramps, and drainage improvements at all 

four corners will reduce the crossing distance and improve pedestrian safety. 

NE 5th Street and NE Evans Street: New traffic signal with signalized cross-walks will improve traffic flow and  

pedestrian safety.  Reconstructed ADA compliant ramps at all four corners will improve pedestrian access. 

NE 5th Street and NE Ford Street: Curb extensions, ADA compliant ramps, and drainage improvements at two 

corners will reduce the crossing distance and improve pedestrian safety. 

NE 5th Street & NE Galloway Street: ADA ramp upgrades will improve pedestrian access. 

NE 5th Street & NE Irvine Street: Curb extensions, ADA compliant ramps, and drainage improvements at two 

corners will reduce the crossing distance and improve pedestrian safety.  

NE 5th Street & NE Lafayette Avenue: New traffic signal with signalized cross-walks will improve traffic flow and 

pedestrian safety.  Reconstructed ADA compliant ramps at three corners will improve pedestrian access. 

NE 5th Street from NE Evans Street to NE Lafayette Avenue: Reconstruction of the existing roadway surface to 

improve smoothness and extend pavement life.  

8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

N
E
 A

d
a

m
s 

S
t.

 

N
E
 B

a
k

e
r 

S
t.

 

N
E
 D

a
v

is
 S

t.
 

N
E
 E

v
a

n
s 

S
t.

 

N
E
 F

o
rd

 S
t.

 

N
E
 G

a
ll
o

w
a

y
 S

t.
 

N
E
 I

rv
in

e
 S

t.
 

N
E 

La
fa

y
e

tt
e

 A
v
e

. 

WHERE?  
Roadway improvements and construction along NE 5th Street will occur at the following intersections: 

8 

7 

6 

5 

4 

3 

2 

1

Spring 2016 

9 

9 



FOR MORE INFORMATION 

Visit the Website at www.McMinnvilleTransportationBond.org  

or contact: 

Larry Sherwood, Project Manager 

E-mail: Larry.Sherwood@ci.mcminnville.or.us 

Address: 231 NE 5th Street, McMinnville, OR 97128 

Phone: 503.434.7312 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Spring 2016 

CONSTRUCTION IMPACTS 

Construction along  NE 5th Street between NE Adams Street and NE Lafayette Avenue 

will periodically affect road users at various times. Signed detour routes will be in  

place for motorists during street closures. Anticipated impacts may include:  

 Night-time lane closures along 5th Street at NE Adams and NE Baker 

 Day-time shoulder closures along 5th Street at NE Adams and NE Baker 

 Day-time lane and shoulder closures along NE 5th Street at NE Davis, NE Evans, NE Ford Street, NE Galloway 

Street, NE Irvine Street, and NE Lafayette Avenue 

 Pedestrian detours along NE 5th Street at all eight intersections 

2015 
2016 2017 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

  

Design 
Bid 

Award 
 Construction 

  



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject: 5th Street / Alpine Ave design

services Task Order No. 3
From: Mike Bisset, Community

Development Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 41:  A Resolution approving Task Order No. 3 to the Personal Services Contract
for the design of the 5 th Street and Alpine Avenue transportation bond measure projects.
 

BACKGROUND:
On June 24, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution 2015-34, awarding the Personal Services
Contract for preliminary design services for the 5th Street and Alpine Ave transportation bond measure
projects to HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR), in the amount of $373,898.00.  The Contract was amended,
via Resolution 2015-58, to include Task Order No. 1 in the amount of $435,682.00; and via Resolution
2015-61, to include Task Order No. 2 in the amount of $162,291.00. 

The attached Task Order No. 3 amends the Personal Services Contract to include additional work
necessary to complete the final project design for 5 th Street and Alpine Avenue; as well as construction
inspection and engineering services for the 5th Street improvements.  The estimated cost for this work is
$407,353.00. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution approving Task Order No. 3 to the
Personal Services Contract for the design of the 5 th Street and Alpine Avenue transportation bond
measure projects.

Attachments
HDR Task Order 3 Resolution 
TASK ORDER NO. 3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 41

A Resolution approving Task Order No. 3 to the Personal Services Contract for the design 
of the 5th Street and Alpine Avenue transportation bond measure projects.

RECITALS:

On June 24, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution 2015-34, awarding the Personal 
Services Contract for preliminary design services for the 5th Street and Alpine Ave transportation 
bond measure projects to HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR), in the amount of $373,898.00.  The 
Contract was amended, via Resolution 2015-58, to include Task Order No. 1 in the amount of 
$435,682.00; and via Resolution 2015-61, to include Task Order No. 2 in the amount of 
$162,291.00.  

The attached Task Order No. 3 amends the Personal Services Contract to include
additional work necessary to complete the final project design for 5th Street and Alpine Avenue; as 
well as construction inspection and engineering services for the 5th Street improvements. The 
estimated cost for this work is $407,353.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That Task Order No. 3 to the Personal Services Contract between the City of 
McMinnville and HDR Engineering, Inc., in the amount of $407,353.00, is hereby 
approved.

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute Task Order No. 3.

3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall continue in 
full force and effect until modified, revoked, or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a meeting held the 28th day 
of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR
Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY



TASK ORDER NO. 3 
to the 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
with 

HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 

This Task Order No. 3 amends the personal services contract, dated June 29, 2015, 
between the City of McMinnville (City) and HDR Engineering, Inc. (Contractor) for 
engineering design and construction services.   

The parties mutually covenant and agree as follows: 

1. STATEMENT OF WORK

The Contractor will provide additional work necessary to complete the final project design 
for both 5th Street and Alpine Avenue; as well as construction inspection and engineering 
services for the 5th Street improvements, as outlined in the attached proposal dated 
June 17, 2016.  The cost for these services is estimated to be $407,353.00. 

2. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Task Order No. 3 is effective on the date at which it is fully executed.

3. COMPENSATION

The City agrees to pay the Contractor for actual hours worked and allowable expenses 
incurred by the Contractor and its agents for accomplishing the work required by this Task 
Order No. 3, with a total sum not to exceed $407,353.00. 

4. OTHER CONDITIONS / REQUIREMENTS

The terms and conditions of the original Personal Services Contract remain in full force and 
effect. 

For the Owner: 
Approved: 

By:  ______________________________ 

Title:  ____________________________ 

Date:  ____________________________ 

For the Contractor: 
Approved: 

By:  ______________________________ 

Title:  ____________________________ 

Date:  ____________________________ 



5th Street and Alpine Avenue HDR 
Amendment #3 draft 06/17/16  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5th and Alpine Scope  Page 1  
 

Amendment #3 
 

5th Street: Adams Street – Lafayette Avenue 
Alpine Avenue: 5th Street – 11th Way 

City of McMinnville 
 
During the term of this Agreement, the engineering consultant, HDR Engineering, Inc., (Consultant) shall 
perform professional services for the City of McMinnville (City) in connection with the above referenced 
project.  This scoping document shall be used to plan, conduct and complete the Consultant’s work on the 
project. 

PROJECT OBJECTIVES 

The purpose of this amendment to increase the scope of the project to include the following: 
• Increase the number of curb ramps to design from 18 to 26; 
• Additional coordination effort with ODOT for the new pedestrian pole layout standards; 
• Redesign 16 curb ramps based on new ODOT pedestrian pole layout standard; 
• Include the cost for 5 appraisals; 
• Provide turning template exhibits for WB67 and WB40 trucks along Alpine Ave. Develop design 

alternatives to accommodate WB67 trucks at 8th and 10th and 11th. Analyze off-tracking impacts at 
each intersection and adjust streetscape layout to avoid conflicts; 

• Provide 3 design options each for the parking lots at Ultimate RB and Care for Kids parking lot; 
• Re-grade Alpine Ave from 10th Street to 11th Way to ensure cross slopes are less than or equal to 2%. 
• Schedule and attend an additional 2 site visits with utilities to review conflicts and potential solutions 

on 5th Street; 
• Preparation and attendance for an additional 9 meetings with property owners along Alpine Ave. 

Gather input and update design to reflect issues and concerns; 
• Preparation and attendance for additional  75% review meeting and respond to City comments – 

Alpine Ave; 
• Update and respond to City comments on 100% plans for 5th and Alpine Ave. 
• Add Construction inspection and construction engineering for 5th Street. 

 

TASKS, DELIVERABLES AND SCHEDULE 

TASK 1.0 MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION 
This task remains unchanged. 

TASK 2.0 PUBLIC OUTREACH  
Add the following to Subtask 2.1 
 
Subtask 2.1 Alpine Property Owner Meetings 
Consultant shall organize, prepare for and attend six (6) meetings with property owners along Alpine Avenue. 
The purpose of the meetings is to understand how the property owners access their property, business 
operations and how to design the streetscape on Alpine Avenue adjacent to their property. The meetings 
include property owners from the Festival and Craft Districts. 
 



5th Street and Alpine Avenue HDR 
Amendment #3 draft 06/17/16  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5th and Alpine Scope  Page 2  
 

 Subtask 2.0 Deliverables: 
• Meeting summaries 
• Materials and displays for public and stakeholder meetings 

TASK 3.0 RIGHT-OF-WAY AND REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS 
Add the following to Subtask 3.3, 3.4, 3.5 

Subtask 3.3  Appraisals and Appraisal Reviews 
Perform two (2) additional appraisals and appraisal reviews. Increase the total of number of appraisals and 
appraisal reviews to eleven (11). The 2 additional locations include Citizens Bank and the school at Lafayette. 

 Subtask 3.3 Deliverables: 
• Two (2) additional appraisals 
• Two (2) appraisal reviews 

Subtask 3.4 Acquisitions 
Perform two (2) acquisitions for the project. Increase the total of number of acquisitions to eleven (11). The 2 
additional locations include Citizens Bank and the school at Lafayette. 

 Subtask 3.4 Deliverables: 
• Two (2) additional acquisition files including all signed documents 
• Two (2) additional landowner contact logs 
• Administrative Settlement Justifications, if needed 
• Updated bi-weekly status spreadsheet including the 2 additional files 

Subtask 3.5 Final Reports and Certifications 
Complete two (2) additional final reports and certifications for  for the project. Increase the total of number of 
acquisitions to eleven (11). The 2 additional locations include Citizens Bank and the school at Lafayette. 

 Subtask 3.5 Deliverables: 
• Up to nine (9) Final Reports 
• Up to nine (9) Closing documents 
• Right-of-Way Certification  

TASK 4.0 PERMITS AND REPORTS 
Add the following to Task 4.0 Permits and Reports 
 
Subtask 4.2  Utility Coordination and Relocation 
Subtask 4.2.1 Coordination Meetings 
Consultant shall schedule, prepare for and lead one (1) additional individual utility meeting for 5th Street and 
two (2) additional individual meetings on Alpine Ave to coordinate potential conflicts and design solutions.  

 Subtask 4.2.1 Deliverables: 
• Meeting summaries 

Subtask 4.2.2 Notice of Utility Conflict 
Consultant shall prepare and send an additional four (4) utility conflict notices with 30%, 75% and 100% plans 
for 5th Street and three (3) utility conflict notices with 75% plans and 100% plans for Alpine Ave. 



5th Street and Alpine Avenue HDR 
Amendment #3 draft 06/17/16  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5th and Alpine Scope  Page 3  
 

 
 Subtask 4.2.2 Deliverables: 

• Notice of Utility Conflict to each utility with apparent utility conflicts at 30%, 75% and 100% plans 
deliverable for 5th Street and 75% and 100% plan submittal for Alpine Ave. 

• Copy of Utility Conflict to each utility with apparent utility conflicts to City Project Management. 
 
Subtask 4.2.3 Letters of Approvals of Relocation Plans and Relocation Time Requirements 
Consultant shall provide each utility owner with preliminary plans identifying conflicts. Consultant shall review 
utilities’ relocation plans and approve the relocation plan. The Consultant shall provide a letter of approval and 
the relocation timing requirements for each utility needing relocation. 
 
Assumption: 

• An additional seven (7) approval letters will be competed. 
 
 Subtask 4.2.3 Deliverables: 

• Letter of approval of relocation plans and relocation time requirements to each utility agency with 
conflicting facilities. 

• Copy of Letter of Approval of relocation plans and relocation time requirements to each utility agency 
with conflicting facilities to City Project Management. 

TASK 5.0 TRAFFIC ENGINEERING AND MANAGEMENT 
Add the following to Task 5.0 Traffic Engineering and Management 
 
Subtask 5.1 Traffic Signal Design 
Consultant shall update the traffic signal designs to meet the new ODOT standard for pedestrian pole 
placement for new traffic signals and appurtenances at the intersections of 5th Street at Adams Street (OR99 
S), Baker Street (OR99 N), Evans Street and Lafayette Avenue. Consultant shall work with ODOT to obtain 
necessary approvals for installation of new signals on OR99.  
 
 Subtask 5.1 Deliverable: 

• Revised traffic signal plans, specifications and estimate delivered as part of Task 7.0. 

Subtask 5.2 Traffic Signal Interconnect 
Consultant shall prepare signal interconnect plans on 5th Street between Baker and Lafayette Ave.  
  
 Subtask 5.2 Deliverables: 

• Signal interconnect plans, specifications and estimate delivered as part of Task 7.0. 

TASK 6.0 APLINE STREETSCAPE DESIGN 
Add the following to Task 6.0 Alpine Streetscape Design 
  
Subtask 6.2 Site Furnishings/Features 

• Consultant shall prepare 100% plans, specifications and estimate to be included in Task 7.0 
deliverables for the trellis specialty feature. 

 
 Subtask 6.2 Deliverables: 

• 100% plans, specifications and estimate for trellis delivered as part of Task 7.0. 



5th Street and Alpine Avenue HDR 
Amendment #3 draft 06/17/16  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5th and Alpine Scope  Page 4  
 

TASK 7.0 PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND ESTIMATE 
Add the following to Task 7.0 Plans, Specifications and Estimate 
 
Subtask 7.1 Advance Plans, Specifications and Estimate (75%) 
Consultant shall increase the number of ramps on 5th Street to be designed and detailed from 40 to 61. The 
ramps include: 

• Adams Street / 5th Street – 4 quadrants – 8 ramp details 
• Baker Street / 5th Street – 4 quadrants – 7 ramp details 
• Davis Street / 5th Street – 4 quadrants – 8 ramp details 
• Evans Street / 5th Street –4 quadrants – 8 ramp details 
• Ford Street / 5th Street – 3 quadrants – 5 ramp details 
• Galloway Street / 5th Street – 4 quadrants – 8 ramp details 
• Irving Street / 5th Street – 1 quadrants, 1 ramp detail 
• Johnson/Lafayette Street / 5th Street – 4 quadrants – 10 ramp details 
• Lafayette Street / 7th Street – 2 quadrants – 2 ramp details 

 
Consultant shall develop truck turning templates and perform analysis on turning movements at intersections 
along Alpine Ave and intersections of cross streets. Show ingress and egress movements at all intersections 
and streetscape impacts at intersections along with impacts on adjacent side streets. Show truck turning 
exhibits for at the following intersections with Alpine Ave: 
 

• 7th Street, 8th Street, 9th Street, 10th Street, 11th Street, 11th Way 
 
Consultant shall develop 2 options for parking lot layouts at Care for Kids and Ultimate RB Rubber. In addition 
to the layout options, Consultant shall develop a cost estimate for construction of the two options for Ultimate 
RB. 

 
Subtask 7.1 Deliverables: 

• 5th Street 
o Consultant shall submit: One (1) complete 11 x 17 electronic set of 75% plans in PDF Format. 

Sheet list as noted below. 
o One (1) electronic set of Specifications in MS Word Format 
o One (1) electronic copy of detailed 75% Construction Cost Estimate in PDF Format. 
o Notes and response to City 75% review comments. 

• Alpine Ave – festival district and craft district as an add alternative 
o Additional 75% review meeting for Alpine Avenue will occur in McMinnville and will be up to 

two (2) hours in duration. 
o Consultant shall submit: One (1) complete 11 x 17 electronic set of 75% plans in PDF Format. 

Sheet list as noted below. 
o One (1) electronic set of Specifications in MS Word Format 
o One (1) electronic copy of detailed 75% Construction Cost Estimate in PDF Format. 
o Notes and response to City 75% review comments. 

 

Name of Sheet 

Estimated # 
of Sheets 

(5th & Alpine) 

Actual # of 
Sheets (5th 

Street) 

Actual # of 
Sheets 

(Alpine Ave – 
festival) 

Actual # of 
Sheets 

(Alpine Ave – 
craft) 

Title sheet 1 1 1 - 
Legend, Abbreviation and Notes - 1 4 - 
Typical sections 8 4 6 1 



5th Street and Alpine Avenue HDR 
Amendment #3 draft 06/17/16  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5th and Alpine Scope  Page 5  
 

Details 13 11 - - 
Temporary protection and direction of 
traffic  7 1 4 2 
Demolition Plans - - 1 1 
Roadway plans and profiles 14 8 3 3 
Grading Plans - - 3 3 
Storm Drainage and Utility plan/profiles 14 6 2 2 
Utility Plans - - 1 1 
Erosion control 6 4 1 1 
Surfacing Plan - - 3 2 
Streetscape Plans - - 3 2 
Streetscape Details - - 8 - 
Planting Plans and Details 8 - 4 2 
Irrigation Plans and Details - - 2 1 
Sign and striping plans 17 8 3 3 
Signal plans 5 24 - - 
Lighting Plans and Details 8 - 5 3 

Total 101 68 54 27 
 
Subtask 7.2 Final Plans, Specifications and Estimate (100%) 
Consultant shall develop curb ramp detail sheets as per new ODOT requirements for pedestrian pole layout at 
signals. Consultant shall develop the Final plans, specifications and estimate prepared under Task 7.1 and 
shall make modifications to the plans and specifications to address 75% review comments received from City. 
 
Consultant shall develop a 90% submittal for the Traffic Signal, Illumination and Interconnect Plan Sheets for 
ODOT review. 
 
 Subtask 7.2 Deliverables: 

• 5th Street 
o Consultant shall submit: One (1) complete 11 x 17 paper set of 90% and 100% Traffic Signal, 

Illumination and Interconnect Plan Sheets to ODOT. 
o Responses to ODOT comments on 90% Traffic Signal, Illumination and Interconnect Plan 

Sheets. 
o Consultant shall submit: One (1) complete 11 x 17 electronic set of 100% Final plans in PDF 

Format. 
o One (1) electronic set of Specifications in MS Word Format. 
o One (1) electronic copy of detailed 100% construction cost estimate in PDF Format. 

• Alpine Ave 
o Consultant shall submit: One (1) complete 11 x 17 electronic set of 100% Final plans in PDF 

Format. 
o One (1) electronic set of Specifications in MS Word Format. 
o One (1) electronic copy of detailed 100% construction cost estimate in PDF Format. 

TASK 8.0 PRE-BID SERVICES  
This task remains unchanged. 



5th Street and Alpine Avenue HDR 
Amendment #3 draft 06/17/16  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5th and Alpine Scope  Page 6  
 

TASK 9.0 Construction Engineering and Inspection for 5th Street 
Add Task 9.0 Construction Engineering and Inspection for 5th Street. 
  
Subtask 9.1 Construction Project Management and Coordination 
Consultant shall establish and maintain the lines of communication and set forth the priorities between the PM, 
Agency, and CC.  
 
Following the award of the construction contract, and as specified in Standard Specification 00180.42, a 
preconstruction conference will be held with to discuss the construction schedule, utility involvement, permit 
concerns, required documentation submittals, materials, and other items relevant to the construction of the 
project. The project coordination task will be ongoing throughout the project. 
 
Assumptions: 

• City will schedule and lead the preconstruction conference; 
• Preconstruction conference will be held in McMinnville and have a 2 hour duration; 
• Up to three (3) Consultants will attend the preconstruction conference. 

 
 Subtask 9.1 Deliverables: 

• Attend and support Agency led preconstruction conference. Conference may also include utility 
companies located within the project limits.  

• Provide notes of preconstruction conference and progress meetings. 
• Provide monthly invoices and progress reports. 

 
Subtask 9.2 Construction Engineering and Inspection (CEI) 
Consultant shall perform CEI services on this project as required to document conformance of the 
construction with the approved plans and specifications for the project. Inspections will be periodic based on 
the CC's operations and will focus on the signal construction. 
 
Assumptions: 

• Duration of construction will be from July 2016 thru May 2017. Periodic onsite inspections will 
require over a duration of 42 weeks of project work. 

• Onsite construction activities are assumed to require 24 hours per week for one inspector. 
 
When periodic inspections are performed, the general order and nature of the inspection will be as follows: 

• Inspect signals 
• Inspect reconstruction of sidewalks and ADA ramps 
• Inspect aggregate base and HMAC materials and placement. 
• Document quantity and quality as required by the City Standards as appropriate to confirm CC 

compliance to the contract. 
 
 Subtask 9.2 Deliverables: See Subtask 9.3 
 
Subtask 9.3 General Documentation 
Consultant shall perform construction documentation tasks required to document CC activities during periodic 
inspection visits. Consultant shall prepare all documentation on forms and reports approved by the City.  



5th Street and Alpine Avenue HDR 
Amendment #3 draft 06/17/16  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5th and Alpine Scope  Page 7  
 

General documentation includes general daily progress reports, quantity and quality documentation for 
inspected items, these tasks will be on-going throughout the project. 
 
Acceptance of CC's Quality Control for field-tested materials will be based on the ODOT Quality Assurance 
(QA) Program as described in the ODOT Manual of Field Test Procedures. Acceptance of non-field tested 
materials will be according to ODOT's Non-field Tested Materials Acceptance Guide. 
 
Assumption: 

• Verification testing will be completed by the City. Costs for any outside materials testing required 
will be paid directly by the City under separate contract with the independent testing firm. 

 
 Subtask 9.3 Deliverables: 

• Prepare general daily progress reports and submit to City. 
 
Subtask 9.4 Review of Construction Submittals 
Consultant shall perform review of submittals if requested including traffic control, and technical submittals 
related to the items constructed under the construction contract. Consultant shall review submittal drawings in 
a timely manner to avoid delay of the CC's operations. 
 
Consultant shall provide project schedule review and analysis throughout the duration of the project.  
 
 
Assumption: 

• Consultant will review up to ten (10) submittals. 
 
 Subtask 9.4 Deliverables: 

• Provide review comments for submittals and recommend approval. 
 
Subtask 9.5 Consultation During Construction 
Consultant shall coordinate with City to provide consultation and technical services regarding design issues 
raised during construction of the project as requested. Consultant shall clarify construction contract 
documents, respond to field inquiries (RFI's), and monitor design assumptions. 
 
In conjunction with the above, Consultant shall provide written responses to RFI's as well as support the City in 
preparing design modifications and issuing plan changes as required to assure conformance of the final 
product with the intent of the design. 
 
Assumption: 

• Consultant shall review up to twenty (20) RFI’s. 
 
 Subtask 9.5 Deliverables: 

• Provide recommended responses to RFI's to the City. 
• Design modifications and plan changes. 

 
Subtask 9.6 Contract Change Orders 
Consultant shall support the City in developing contract revisions during construction. Time spent dealing with 
quality or quantity assurance documentation for work completed relating to a change order or extra work is 
included under this task. Consultant shall provide analysis to assess the merit of any requested additional 
Contract Time and/or additional compensation. 
 
Assumptions: 

• This task does not include claim review efforts. 



5th Street and Alpine Avenue HDR 
Amendment #3 draft 06/17/16  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5th and Alpine Scope  Page 8  
 

• Up to four (4) change orders will be prepared. 
• Contract Change Orders require approval of the City prior to making the change. 

 
 Subtask 9.6 Deliverables: 

• Provide supporting documentation to the City to prepare and draft Contract Change Orders as 
changes arise during construction. This may include minor modifications to the contract plans, 
specifications, contract time, etc. 

• Prepare an email memorandum to the City discussing the change order or revision. 
 
Subtask 9.7 Project Closeout 
Consultant shall attend a Final Inspection with the City and CC. This inspection shall follow Second 
Notification to confirm all work was completed in close conformance with the construction contract and that all 
of the City's project goals have been met. Consultant shall note any deficiencies and submit a written punchlist 
to the CC for completion of on-site work. 
 
Consultant shall make corrections to existing plans and prepare final "As-constructed" red line drawings from 
all periodic inspections and submit to the City for final as-building. 
 
 Subtask 9.7 Deliverables: 

• General progress reports, quantity and quality documentation from periodic inspections. 
• Two (2) copies of complete red lined "As-Constructed" contract drawings on 11x17 (half- size) 

paper, and one electronic PDF file emailed to the City. 



Level of Effort

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er

En
gi

ne
er

 II
I

En
gi

ne
er

 II

En
gi

ne
er

 II

En
gi

ne
er

 I

En
gi

ne
er

 I

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 I

En
gi

ne
er

 II
I

En
gi

ne
er

 II
I

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 II

I

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 II

I

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 I

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 II

H
ou

rs

La
bo

r

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 C

ha
rg

e

A
pp

ra
is

al

Ex
pe

ns
e 

Es
tim

at
e 

as
 

a 
%

 o
f L

ab
or

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s

H
D

R
 F

ee

PM
/S

r. 
Pl

an
ne

r

D
es

ig
ne

r V
II

Jo
b 

C
ap

ta
in

Pr
oj

ec
t A

ss
t I

I

La
bo

r

Ex
pe

ns
es

Su
bc

on
su

lta
nt

 T
ot

al

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
M

an
ag

er
 1

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
En

gi
ne

er
 

4 C
on

tr
ac

t A
dm

in

La
bo

r

Ex
pe

ns
es

Su
bc

on
su

lta
nt

 T
ot

al

To
ta

l F
ee

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(in

cl
ud

es
 s

ub
-c

on
su

lta
nt

 
m

ar
k-

up
 a

nd
 e

sc
al

at
io

n)

199$         168$          118$          118$          90$          90$          78$          168$        168$         140$       140$       78$           109$         160$     160$        95$       85$        154$          116$          116$          
Task Description

Task 2.0 Public Outreach
2.1 Alpine Ave Property owner mtgs:6 addl mtgs 10 8 18 2,934$          67$           29$           96$               3,030$            -$             -$            -$               -$              3,030$            

Sub-total 10 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 2,934$          67$           -$             29$           96$               3,030$            0 0 0 0 -$             -$      -$            0 0 0 -$               -$          -$              3,030$            
Task 3.0 Right of Way and Real Property Acquisitions

3.3 2 additional appraisals plus 5 appraisal budgets omitted from original budget 12 12 1,680$          44$           18,500$       17$           18,561$        20,241$          -$             -$            -$               -$              20,241$          
3.4 2 additional acquisitions 80 70 20 4 174 21,112$        644$         211$         855$             21,967$          -$             -$            -$               -$              21,967$          
3.5 2 additional final reports and certifications 8 8 624$             30$           6$             36$               660$               -$             -$            -$               -$              660$               

Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0 88 0 70 20 12 4 0 194 23,416$        718$         18,500$       234$         19,452$        42,868$          0 0 0 0 -$             -$      -$            0 0 0 -$               -$          -$              42,868$          
Task 4.0 Permits and Reports

4.2.1 Add'l meeting and coordination with Utilities 16 16 16 60 108 17,840$        400$         178$         578$             18,418$          -$             -$            -$               -$              18,418$          
4.2.2 Conflict letters - 6 to 13 20 20 3,360$          74$           34$           108$             3,468$            -$             -$            -$               -$              3,468$            
4.2.3 letters of approvals 6 to 13 20 20 3,360$          74$           34$           108$             3,468$            -$             -$            -$               -$              3,468$            

Sub-total 16 16 16 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 148 24,560$        548$         -$             246$         793$             25,353$          0 0 0 0 -$             -$      -$            0 0 0 -$               -$          -$              25,353$          
Task 7.0 Final PSE - 5th Street

7.1 Increase curb ramp design effort from 18 to 26 60 80 140 14,280$        518$         143$         661$             14,941$          -$             -$            -$               -$              14,941$          
7.1 Redesign 16 ramps based on ODOT new standards to accommodate ped poles 120 80 120 320 34,400$        1,184$      344$         1,528$          35,928$          -$             -$            -$               -$              35,928$          
5.1 Redesign of 4 traffic signals and ped poles based on ODOT new standards 120 120 240 30,960$        888$         310$         1,198$          32,158$          -$             -$            -$               -$              32,158$          
5.2 Interconnect system from Baker to Lafayette 8 8 16 2,064$          59$           21$           80$               2,144$            -$             -$            -$               -$              2,144$            

Sub-total 0 128 180 80 200 128 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 716 81,704$        2,649$      -$             817$         3,466$          85,170$          0 0 0 0 -$             -$      -$            0 0 0 -$               -$          -$              85,170$          
Task 7.0 Final PSE - Alpine Ave - Festival

7.2 Truck turning templates and alternatives, exhibits 20 40 60 7,080$          222$         71$           293$             7,373$            -$             -$            -$               -$              7,373$            
7.2 Parking Lot Alternatives and Estiamtes 20 20 2,360$          74$           24$           98$               2,458$            -$             -$            -$               -$              2,458$            
7.2 Increased effort and coordination with design team 40 80 20 140 19,520$        518$         195$         713$             20,233$          -$             -$            -$               -$              20,233$          
6.2 Trellis Design 0 -$              -$          -$          -$              -$               7 10 29 24 7,515$         7,515$        -$               -$              7,891$            

Sub-total 0 40 20 140 0 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 220 28,960$        814$         -$             290$         1,104$          30,064$          7 10 29 24 7,515$         -$      7,515$        0 0 0 -$               -$          -$              37,954$          
Task 7.0 Final PSE - Alpine Ave - Craft

7.3 Regrading of Alpine between 10th and 11th 40 40 80 8,320$          296$         83$           379$             8,699$            -$             -$            -$               -$              8,699$            
7.3 Increased effort and coordination with design team 40 80 20 140 19,520$        518$         195$         713$             20,233$          -$             -$            -$               -$              20,233$          
7.3 illumination, stormwater planters, conflicts with waterline 0 -$              -$          -$          -$              -$               -$             -$            -$               -$              -$               
6.2 Trellis Design 0 -$              -$          -$          -$              -$               7 10 29 24 7,515$         7,515$        -$               -$              7,891$            

Sub-total 0 40 0 120 40 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 220 27,840$        814$         -$             278$         1,092$          28,932$          7 10 29 24 7,515$         -$      7,515$        0 0 0 -$               -$          -$              36,823$          
Task 9 Phase 4: 5th Street Management & Administration

9.1 Project Management & Coordination (10 months CN) 30 40 70 10,330$        259$         103$         362$             10,692$          40 6,160$           6,160$          17,160$          
Sub-total 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 70 10,330$        259$         -$             103$         362$             10,692$          0 0 0 0 -$             -$      -$            40 0 0 6,160$           -$          6,160$          17,160$          

Task 9 Phase 4: 5th Street Construction Services
9.2 Construction Engineering & Inspections (CEI) 0 -$              -$          -$          -$              -$               -$             -$      -$            950 110,200$       7,000$      117,200$      123,060$        
9.3 General Documentation 0 -$              -$          -$          -$              -$               -$             -$      -$            -$               -$              -$               
9.4 Review of Construction Submittals 40 40 80 11,440$        296$         114$         410$             11,850$          -$             -$            -$               -$              11,850$          
9.5 Consultation During Construction 20 80 100 12,800$        370$         128$         498$             13,298$          -$             -$            10 1,160$           1,160$          14,516$          
9.6 Contract Change Orders 20 40 60 8,080$          222$         81$           303$             8,383$            -$             -$            -$               -$              8,383$            
9.7 Project Closeout 4 4 8 1,144$          30$           11$           41$               1,185$            -$             -$            -$               -$              1,185$            

Sub-total 0 84 164 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 248 33,464$        918$         -$             335$         1,252$          34,716$          0 0 0 0 -$             -$      -$            0 950 10 111,360$       7,000$      118,360$      158,994$        
Hours 56 308 380 348 240 128 88 40 170 20 12 4 40 1,834 14 20 58 48 40 950 10
Fee $11,144 $51,744 $44,840 $41,064 $21,600 $11,520 $6,864 $6,720 $28,560 $2,800 $1,680 $312 $4,360 233,208$      6,786$      18,500$       2,332$      27,618$        260,826$        $2,240 $3,200 $5,510 $4,080 15,030$       -$      15,030$      $6,160 $110,200 $1,160 117,520$       7,000$      124,520$      
Escalation for 2016 -$              
Sub-consultant Budget w/ Mark-up 15,782$      130,746$      

407,353$        

Right of Way Admin
City of McMinnville - 5th and Alpine -  Amendment No. 3

OBECSERA

Project 
Manag
ement Roadway Design / Bike Ped

Traffic 
Desig

n

Public 
Involv
ement Stormwater



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject: 5th Street property purchase

approval resolution
From: Mike Bisset, Community

Development Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 42:  A Resolution approving the acquisition of property from Ninety Degrees, LLC
for the 5th Street transportation bond project.

BACKGROUND:
At their February 23, 2016 meeting, the City Council adopted Resolution 2016-10 authorizing the
acquisition of property for the 5th Street transportation bond project.  The City's consultant, HDR
Engineering, has completed the appraisal and negotiation process to acquire property for the project
from Ninety Degrees, LLC.

The purchase price for the property is $700.00, plus closing and escrow costs.

The attached resolution approves the acquisition, and authorizes the City Manager to sign the Dedication
Deed.
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution approving the purchase of property from
Ninety Degrees, LLC.

Attachments
Ninety Degrees Resolution 
DEDICATION DEED 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 42

A Resolution approving the acquisition of property from Ninety Degrees, LLC for the 5th

Street transportation bond project.

RECITALS:

At their February 23, 2016 meeting, the City Council adopted Resolution 2016-10 
authorizing the acquisition of property for the 5th Street transportation bond project.

The City's consultant, HDR Engineering, has completed the appraisal and negotiation 
process to acquire property for the project from Ninety Degrees, LLC.

The purchase price for the property is $700.00, plus closing and escrow costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That the acquisition of property from Ninety Degrees, LLC, for the 5th Street 
transportation bond project, at the purchase price of $700.00, is hereby approved, 
and the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Dedication 
Deed.

3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall continue in 
full force and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting held the 
28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR
Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY













City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 43:  Authorizing and Directing the entry into a contract for the provision of
janitorial services at various City facilities

BACKGROUND:
ORS 279.835 through 279.855 establishes a program within Oregon to support the award of public
contracts for certain products and services to qualified nonprofit agencies that provide employment
opportunities to persons with disabilities.  The Qualified Rehabilitation Facilities (QRF) Program is
administered by the Oregon Department of Administrative Services (DAS). 
 
If a particular product or service is identified by DAS as being available within Yamhill County, then the
City of McMinnville is required to “procure the product or service at the price [DAS] establishes from a
qualified nonprofit agency for individuals with disabilities, provided that the product or service is of the
appropriate specifications and is available within the period the public agency requires.”  ORS
279.850(1).  A list of products and services offered in Yamhill County is available on the DAS-QRF
website
 
Janitorial Services is one of the services identified by DAS as being available through the QRF Program
in Yamhill County, and four vendors are identified as providing the service: MV Advancements (Amity),
Diversified Abilities (Clackamas), Garten Services (Salem) and TVW Inc. (Hillsboro).  As a result, the City
is required to work in good faith to contract with one of the vendors to provide Janitorial Services at the
City’s facilities. 
 
Contracts with QRF vendors are exempt from competitive bidding requirements, pursuant to ORS
279A.025(4).  Therefore, the City is allowed to approach a single QRF entity for the purpose of
negotiating and directly awarding a contract directly to that vendor.  We are prohibited from awarding the
contract to a private company outside of the QRF program, unless we determine (after a good faith
effort) that a QRF vendor is unable to provide the service to the City.
 
MV Advancements was approached and was unable to meet the staffing needs of the project, and
declined to quote the work.  TVW Inc. was not currently doing any work in Yamhill County and declined to
quote the work.  Garten Services is currently providing work for clients in McMinnville, and was interested
in the Cities janitorial work.  A quote was generated and those prices we 20% more than currently being
paid to ABM Janitorial and are as follows:
  



      ABM  

    Garten
Services Current Pricing Change

         
1 CITY HALL $531.96 $365.00 145.74%

2 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CENTER $594.12 $435.00 136.58%

3 FIRE STATION $525.82 $460.00 114.31%
4 LIBRARY $1,816.29 $1,450.00 125.26%
5 COMMUNITY CENTER $3,206.87 $2,590.00 123.82%
6 SENIOR CENTER $790.61 $700.00 112.94%
7 PUBLIC WORKS $211.61 $200.00 105.81%
8 WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY $659.29 $525.00 125.58%
9 AQUATIC CENTER $1,982.23 $1,600.00 123.89%
10 PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING $2,023.95 $1,950.00 103.79%
11 CIVIC HALL $515.26 $400.00 128.82%
  MONTHLY TOTAL: ( All Locations) $12,858.01 $10,675.00 120.45%

  TOTAL ANNUAL CONTRACT
AMOUNT: $154,296.12 $128,100.00 120.45%

  (MONTHLY TOTAL X 12)       
 
 
 
The contract work will commence on July 1, 2016, and will end on June 30, 2017.  The cost for the 2016
City Facility Janitorial Services will be included in each departments FY 17 Budget. 

On April 12, 2016, the Council approved Resolution No. 2016 - 16 awarding the contract for janitorial
services to ABM based on the competitive bidding process.  After passage of the resolution, but prior to
the execution of the contract, staff determined that the solicitation process should be suspended pending
an internal review to determine our compliance with the QRF contracting requirements set forth in ORS
Chapter 279.  Based on that internal review, staff initiated a process of seeking quotes from the WRF
vendors.  Now that we have determined that a WFR vendor is capable of performing work that meets the
City's specifications, the previous solicitation process should be terminated and the prior resolution
repealed, pursuant to ORS 279B.100(2).
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council award the resolution awarding the contract for the 2016 City
Facility Janitorial Services to Garten Services in the amount of $154,296.12.
 

Attachments
Janitorial Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 43

A Resolution authorizing and directing the entry into a contract for the provision 
of janitorial services at various City facilities.

RECITALS:  

Pursuant to ORS 279.835 to 279.855, the City is required to give preference in 
contracting to QRF vendors that are capable of providing services meeting the City’s 
appropriate specifications.  Pursuant to ORS 279A.025(4), contracts with QRF vendors 
are exempt from competitive bidding requirements.

The City received a quote for janitorial services at eleven City facilities.   The 
quote was from Garten Services a Qualified Rehabilitation Facility (QRF) janitorial 
services provider for Yamhill County.  The quote from Garten was per City specifications
and Garten Services should be considered a responsive and responsible bid.

Prior to soliciting the quote from Garten, the City had initiated a competitive 
bidding process to award a janitorial services contract outside of the QRF process.  
Pursuant to ORS 279B.100(2), the City may terminate that solicitation process if such 
termination is deemed to be in the best interest of the City. The City’s compliance with 
the QRF contracting procedures required by ORS Chapter 279 is in the best interest of 
the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That entry into a contract between the City of McMinnville and Garten 
Services for the provision of janitorial services at various city facilities 
beginning July 1, 2016, for a period of one year in the annual amount of 
$154,296.12, being the lowest and best bid, is hereby approved.

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the contract 
containing the specifications for janitorial services to be provided at the 
following facilities: City Hall, Community Development Center, Fire Station, 
Library, Community Center, Senior Center, Public Works, Water Reclamation 
Facility, Aquatic Center, Public Safety Building and the Civic Hall.

3. That Resolution 2016 - 16 is hereby repealed, as the termination of that 
solicitation process is in the best interest of the City.

4. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall 
continue in full force and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting 
held the 28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 43 - 2 -

MAYOR
Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject: Supplemental Budget for fiscal year

2015-16
From: Marcia Baragary, Finance Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 44:  Adopting a supplemental budget for fiscal year 2015-16 and making
supplemental appropriations

BACKGROUND:
This resolution includes a supplemental budget for the Transient Lodging Tax Fund and the
Telecommunications Fund, due to higher than anticipated revenues.  Adoption of the supplemental
budget allows for the additional Transient Lodging Taxes to be disbursed to Visit McMinnville and
transferred to the General Fund and also allows disbursement of additional Telecommunications fees to
McMinnville Community Media. 

This resolution also includes a supplemental budget for the Airport Maintenance Fund, due to higher than
anticipated costs for a runway rehabilitation project.  FAA and ODOT-Connect Oregon grant funds are
available to fund the increased costs.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval of the resolution adopting the supplmental budget for fiscal year 2015-2016 and making
supplemental appropriations

Attachments
Supp Budget Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 44

A Resolution adopting a supplemental budget for fiscal year 2015-2016 and making
supplemental appropriations

RECITAL:

Oregon Local Budget Law allows a local government to prepare a supplemental budget
when an occurrence or condition that was not known at the time the budget was prepared 
requires a change in financial planning (ORS 294.471).

A supplemental budget is necessary in the Transient Lodging Tax Fund to allow 
disbursement of higher than anticipated transient lodging tax revenues. This supplemental 
budget increases appropriations in the Transient Lodging Tax Fund for disbursement of the 
additional taxes to Visit McMinnville (VM), as provided for in the City’s agreement with VM, and 
to increase the transfer of a portion of the taxes to the General Fund. 

A supplemental budget is necessary in the Telecommunications Fund to allow 
disbursement of higher than anticipated telecommunication fee revenues. This supplemental 
budget increases appropriations for disbursement of cable franchise fees and public, education, 
and governmental (PEG) access fees to McMinnville Community Media (MCM), as provided for 
in the City’s agreement with MCM.

A supplemental budget is necessary in the Airport Maintenance Fund due to the 
unanticipated increase in costs of the rehabilitation of the main Runway 4-22 at the McMinnville 
Municipal Airport.  Appropriations for fiscal year 2015-2016 were based on a preliminary 
estimate of the final design and construction of the project.  In the last four months, the City has 
completed the final design and bid the project.  Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) grant 
funds and matching ODOT–Connect Oregon grant funds are available to fund the increased 
costs. This supplemental budget increases appropriations to reflect actual project costs and 
scope.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
McMINNVILLE, as follows:

1. Adopt the following Supplemental Budget: The City Council of the City of 
McMinnville adopts the following Supplemental Budget for 2015-2016 in the 
Transient Lodging Tax Fund, Telecommunications Fund, and Airport Maintenance 
Fund.

2. Make Supplemental Appropriations: The additional appropriations for fiscal year 
2015-2016 are hereby appropriated as follows:



Resolution No. 2015 - 44 2

Transient Lodging Tax Fund resource and requirement increases related to unanticipated 
receipt of additional transient lodging tax revenues. It is therefore necessary to increase 
appropriations in the Materials and Services category for Tourism Promotion and Programs to 
allow the disbursement of the additional taxes to Visit McMinnville and in the Transfers Out to 
General Fund category to allow transfer of the additional taxes to the General Fund. 

Transient Lodging Tax Fund:
Adopted 
Budget

Budget 
Adjustment

Amended
Budget

Resources:
Beginning Fund Balance $ 401,144 50,186 $   451,330
Licenses and Permits 590,000     85,000 675,000
Miscellaneous 2,100 - 2,100
Total Resources $   993,244 135,186 $ 1,128,430

Requirements:
Materials and Services $ 810,344 117,763 $    928,107
Transfers Out General Fund 182,900 17,423 200,323
Total Requirements $   993,244 135,186 $ 1,128,430

Telecommunications Fund resource and requirement increases related to unanticipated 
receipt of telecommunications fees for fiscal year 2015-2016.  It is therefore necessary to 
increase appropriations in the Materials and Services category to allow disbursement of the 
additional franchise and PEG access fees to McMinnville Community Media.

Telecommunications Fund:
Adopted 
Budget

Budget 
Adjustment

Amended
Budget

Resources:
Beginning Fund Balance $    1,736 $ 1,736
Licenses and Permits 232,000 4,000 236,000
Miscellaneous 100 - 100
Total Resources $ 233,836 4,000 $ 237,836

Requirements:
Materials & Services $ 232,000 4,000 236,000
Contingencies 1,450 1,450
Ending Fund Balance 386 - 386
Total Requirements $ 233,836 4,000 $ 237,836



Resolution No. 2015 - 44 3

Airport Maintenance Fund resource and requirement increases related to unanticipated 
increase in costs of rehabilitation of the main Runway 4-22 at the McMinnville Municipal Airport.  
It is therefore necessary to increase appropriations in the Materials and Services category for 
Professional Services-Plan/Study Environmental Design and Construction Services for the 
unanticipated costs.

Airport Maintenance Fund:
Adopted
Budget

Budget 
Adjustment

Amended
Budget

Resources:
Beginning Fund Balance $  811,138 $  811,138
Intergovernmental 644,223 74,000 718,223
Charges for Services 247,900 247,900
Miscellaneous 9,100 - 9,100
Total Resources $1,712,361 74,000 $1,786,361

Requirements:
Materials & Services 810,005 74,000 884,005
Transfers Out to General Fund 73,871 73,871
Contingency 300,000 300,000
Ending Fund Balance 528,485 - 528,485
Total Requirements $ 1,712,361 74,000 $ 1,786,361

This Resolution will take effect immediately upon passage and shall continue in full force 
and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting held the 
28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes:_________________________________________________________________

Nayes:________________________________________________________________

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

____________________________________
MAYOR

Approved as to form:

_________________________________
CITY ATTORNEY



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject: Resolution Amending 2015-16

Budget
From: Marcia Baragary, Finance Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 45:  Making Budgetary transfers for Fiscal year 2015-16

BACKGROUND:
This resolution transfers appropriation authority from General Fund contingency to Salaries & Wages and
Fringe Benefits accounts in the General Fund due to an unanticipated change in accounting for year end
payroll expenditures.  In addition, the resolution transfers appropriation authority from contingency to the
General Fund, Administration Department due to an unaticipated change in accounting for maintenance
and lighting costs for City parking structures and lots.

The resolution also transfers appropriation authority from Ambulance Fund contingency to Salaries &
Wages and Fringe Benefits accounts in the Ambulance Fund due to the unaticipated change in
accounting for year end payroll expenditures.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval of the resolution making budgetary transfers for fiscal year 2015 - 2016

Attachments
Budget Transfer Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 45

A Resolution making budgetary transfers for fiscal year 2015 - 2016.

RECITAL:

Oregon Local Budget Law allows a governing body to amend an adopted budget by 
increasing an existing appropriation and decreasing another existing appropriation by a 
corresponding amount (ORS 294.463).

The City’s July 15th payroll includes hours worked during the last week of the current 
fiscal year and first week of the next fiscal year (i.e., June 23rd through July 8th). The City’s 
policy has been to record personnel services expenditures for June 23rd through June 30th, 
which is the City’s fiscal year end, in July of the next fiscal year. 

In previous years, the City had considered these expenditures to be immaterial and did 
not record a liability. However, as payroll costs are increasing, the City has now determined that 
it is appropriate to accrue personnel services costs incurred through June 30th. This accounting 
change was not anticipated when the 2015-2016 budget was prepared. As a result of the 
accrual, in several General Fund departments and the Ambulance Fund, actual personnel 
services expenditures may exceed appropriations for fiscal year 2015-2016. Appropriation 
transfers are not required in some General Fund departments, the Street Fund, Building Fund, 
Wastewater Services Fund, and Information Systems & Services Fund, as it appears that 
savings will be sufficient to offset the accrued personnel services costs in those departments.
This resolution transfers appropriations from contingency to Salaries & Wages and Fringe 
Benefits accounts to ensure the City’s compliance with Local Budget Law.

The City has determined that maintenance and lighting costs for the City’s public parking 
structures and lots should be recorded in the General Fund instead of the Street Fund. This 
accounting change was not anticipated when the 2015-2016 budget was prepared.  As a result 
of recording the costs in the General Fund, Administration Department, Materials and Services 
costs will exceed appropriations in that Department. This resolution transfers appropriation 
authority from contingency to the materials and services appropriation in the General Fund, 
Administration Department to ensure the City’s compliance with Local Budget Law.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON that the following transfer of appropriation authority under the 
2015 - 2016 City of McMinnville Adopted Budget is hereby made, to wit:

1. The following emergency need exists in the GENERAL FUND, Administration, 
Finance, Planning, Fire, Parks & Recreation, Park Maintenance, and Library 
Departments:

In the Personnel Services category due to unanticipated personnel services costs 
related to accrual of June 30, 2016 payroll expenditures and in the Materials & 
Services category due to the unanticipated transfer of parking lot maintenance and 
lighting costs to the General Fund.



Resolution No. 2016 - 45 2

2016 2016
Amended Budget Amended

GENERAL FUND: Budget Amendment Budget
Administration $    885,311 20,000 $   905,311
Finance 724,344 5,000 729,344
Engineering 906,281 906,281
Planning 470,479 8,500 478,979
Police 7,438,263 7,438,263
Municipal Court 466,731 466,731
Fire 2,860,570 35,000 2,895,570
Parks & Recreation 2,450,159 8,000 2,458,159
Park Maintenance 1,015,615 8,000 1,023,615
Library 1,456,116 12,000 1,468,116
Special Payments 224,100 224,100
Transfers Out to Other Funds 2,126,202 2,126,202
Operating Contingency 542,000 (96,500) 445,500

Total General Fund $21,566,171 --- $21,566,171

2. The following emergency need exists in the AMBULANCE FUND:

In the Personnel Services category due to unanticipated personnel services costs
related to accrual of June 30, 2016 payroll expenses in the Ambulance Fund.

2016 2016
Amended Budget Amended

AMBULANCE FUND: Budget Amendment Budget
Personnel Services $ 3,071,748 90,000 $ 3,161,748
Materials & Services 854,937 854,937
Capital Outlay 231,903 231,903
Transfers Out 312,834 312,834
Operating Contingency 250,000 (90,000) 160,000

Total Ambulance Fund $ 4,721,422 --- $ 4,721,422

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall continue in full 
force and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting held the 
28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes:

Nays:  

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR
Approved as to form:

_________________________________
CITY ATTORNEY



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject: Appeal of Planning Commission

Decision
From: Doug Montgomery, Planning Director

AGENDA ITEM:
7:00 p.m. Public Hearing:  Appeal of Planning Commission decision regarding proposed residential
tentative subdivision plan.

BACKGROUND:
An application seeking approval of a twenty lot, single-family residential tentative subdivision plan was
submitted to the McMinnville Planning Department on March 17, 2016, by CS Property Investments, LLC
for property located at 2946 SW Redmond Hill Road, and more specifically identified as tax lot 1200,
Section 24, T.4 S., R. 5 W., W. M.  On the evening of April 12, 2016, the Planning Commission
conducted a public hearing regarding this request and received testimony from the applicant, and a
neighboring property owner, Mr. Roy Thompson.  Following the close of the public hearing and
deliberation, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve the subdivision request subject to
the conditions as noted in the staff report. The Commission’s approval was subject to a fifteen (15) day
appeal period that extended through May 9, 2016.  On May 5, 2016, an appeal was filed by Mr. Roy
Thompson on behalf of his client, Anne Thompson.  Anne Thompson owns land east of and adjacent to
the site that is the subject of the subdivision request.  On May 9, 2016, supplemental information was
provided by Mr. Thompson in support of this appeal.  All information related to this appeal is included in
the City Council packet for your review and consideration.  

RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning Department recommends the City Council conduct a public hearing on this appeal, and,
following the close of the hearing and based upon the testimony received and applicable findings of fact,
vote to deny the appeal (thereby upholding the Planning Commission's decision), or reverse the
Commission's decision and approve the appeal.   

Attachments
Appeal (AP 1-16) Public Record 



































































































































City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Report and Recommendation by Gary Eastlund of Hagan-Hamilton to approve the 2016 - 2017 Property,
Liability, Workers Compensation, and Auto Insurance Coverages

BACKGROUND:

Attachments
Gary Eastlund Letter 







City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject: Resolution adopting the budget for

the fiscal year beginning July 1,
2016, making appropriations,
imposing and categorizing property
taxes

From: Marcia Baragary, Finance Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 46:  Adopting the budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016; to make the
appropriations; to impose the property taxes; and to categorize the property taxes

BACKGROUND:
This resolution adopts the City's budget for fiscal year 2016-2017, including changes approved by the
Budget Committee, and other changes as allowed by Oregon Local Budget Law.  See the attached
Memorandum describing these changes.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval of the resolution adopting the budget, making appropriations, imposing property taxes, and
categorizing property taxes for fiscal year 2016-2017

Attachments
Memorandum 2016-17 Budget Adoption 
Adopt Budget Resolution 



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@F0050F8F\@BCL@F0050F8F.docx
6/22/2016 1:14 PM

MEMORANDUM

DATE: June 28, 2016

TO: Martha Meeker, City Manager

FROM: Marcia Baragary, Finance Director

SUBJECT: Budget Resolutions

Oregon Local Budget Law requires the governing body to enact a resolution adopting the City’s 
budget for each fiscal year.  

Resolution Adopting the 2016-17 Budget – This resolution adopts the budget for the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016, makes appropriations, imposes property taxes, and 
categorizes property taxes

 The resolution includes changes as approved by the Budget Committee

a) Community contributions – Increased by $25,000 for contribution to 
Union Gospel Rescue Mission

b) Economic Development – The City’s contribution to the McMinnville 
Economic Development Partnership was decreased from $60,000 to 
$42,000 and an $18,000 contribution towards lobbying efforts for the 
Newberg Dundee Bypass project was added

 Oregon Local Budget Law allows the City Council to make certain changes to 
the budget that was approved by the budget committee.  As presented, the
Resolution adopting the 2016-17 Budget includes the following changes:

a) Planning Department personnel services – Personnel services 
appropriations were increased by $22,000 due to changes related to 
the Planning Director position and a vacant staff position.  
Professional consulting services were reduced to offset the increase.

b) YCOM membership dues for emergency communications – The 
2016-17 Budget approved by the Budget Committee reflected a 5 
percent increase in YCOM membership dues; the actual increase is 4 
percent, resulting in a decrease of $7,600.

c) Janitorial Services – After the Budget Committee approved the 
2016-17 budget, the City negotiated a janitorial services contract 
which will increase costs but will also improve services.  The increase 
in the General Fund is $16,700 and a total of $1,850 in all other funds.

C it y  o f



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@F0050F8F\@BCL@F0050F8F.docx
6/22/2016 1:14 PM

d) Urban Renewal property taxes – Based on information provided by 
professional consultants, urban renewal property tax revenues and 
expenditures were decreased by $62,990. The corresponding inter-
agency transactions in the General Fund were reduced by the same 
amount.  

e) Fire Department grants – The 2016-17 budget presented for 
adoption includes a $23,000 FEMA grant in the Fire Department for 
emergency operations equipment.

f) Carryover projects – Appropriations for projects which will not be
completed in 2015-16 and are carried forward to 2016-17, include the 
following:

- $95,000 for projects at the Airport;

- $12,000 for stucco repair at the Community Center;

- $179,000 in Transportation Fund bond-related street 
and sidewalk improvements

Recommended Action:  City Council approval of the Resolution Adopting the 2016-17
Budget and imposing and categorizing property taxes.



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 46

A Resolution adopting the budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016; to make the
appropriations; to impose the property taxes; and to categorize the property taxes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1.  Adopting the Budget:  The City Council for the City of McMinnville
adopts the budget for 2016 - 2017, now on file in City Hall, 230 NE Second Street, McMinnville,
Oregon, as approved by the Budget Committee and amended by the City Council, in the sum of

2. Making Appropriations:  The amounts for the fiscal year beginning
July 1, 2016 are for the purposes shown below and are hereby appropriated as follows:

General Fund

Administration 1,107,286
Finance 751,854
Engineering 903,100
Planning 549,251
Police 7,613,385
Municipal Court 466,343
Fire 2,929,453
Parks & Recreation 2,536,131
Park Maintenance 1,181,630
Library 1,464,403
Special Payments 2,064,330
Debt Service 150,125
Transfers Out To Other Funds 1,810,155
Operating Contingencies 900,000

Total General Fund Appropriation $ 24,427,446

Special Assessment Fund
Community Assessments and Grants 232,300
Transfers Out To Other Funds 6,020
Operating Contingencies 80,000

Total Special Assessment Fund Appropriation $ 318,320

Transient Lodging Tax Fund
Tourism Promotion and Programs 484,830
Transfers out to Other Funds 209,270

Total Transient Lodging Tax Fund Appropriation $ 694,100

108,664,100$ 

Resolution No. 2016 - 1



Telecommunications Fund
Public Education Access 234,500
Operating Contingencies 1,450

Total Telecommunications Fund Appropriation $ 235,950

Emergency Communications Fund

911 Emergency Communications 819,316
Operating Contingencies 75,000

Total Emergency Communications Fund Appropriation $ 894,316

Street (State Gas Tax) Fund
Street Maintenance and Improvements 1,614,858
Transfers Out To Other Funds 807,202
Operating Contingencies 250,000

Total Street (State Gas Tax) Fund Appropriation $ 2,672,060

Airport Maintenance Fund
Airport Maintenance and Operations 3,622,775
Transfers Out To Other Funds 75,721
Operating Contingencies 300,000

Total Airport Maintenance Fund Appropriation $ 3,998,496

Public Safety Facilities Construction Fund
Police and Civic Hall Building 1,100
Transfer Out to Other Funds 2,376

Total Public Safety Fac Construct Fund Appropriation $ 3,476

Transportation Fund
Street Capital Improvements 11,761,794
Debt Service 201,248
Transfers Out To Other Funds 149,480
Project Contingencies 500,000

Total Transportation Fund Appropriation $ 12,612,522

Park Development Fund
Park Acquisition and Improvements 1,869,283
Transfers Out To Other Funds 154,999

Resolution No. 2016 - 2



Project Contingencies 31,295

Total Park Development Fund Appropriation $ 2,055,577

Debt Service Fund
Debt Service 3,358,950

Total Debt Service Fund Appropriation $ 3,358,950

Building Fund
Building Plan Review and Inspection 415,211
Transfers Out To Other Funds 42,109
Operating Contingencies 75,000

Total Building Fund Appropriation $ 532,320

Wastewater Services Fund
Administration 594,900
Plant 1,714,501
Environmental Services 467,462
Conveyance Systems 784,412
Transfers Out To Other Funds 6,538,984
Operating Contingencies 300,000

Total Wastewater Services Fund Appropriation $ 10,400,259

Wastewater Capital Fund
Sewer Capital Improvements 3,509,450
Transfers Out To Other Funds 203,109
Project Contingencies 500,000

Total Wastewater Capital Fund Appropriation $ 4,212,559

Ambulance Fund
Emergency Medical Services 4,145,455
Transfers Out To Other Funds 325,326
Operating Contingencies 300,000

Total Ambulance Fund Appropriation $ 4,770,781

Resolution No. 2016 - 3



Information Systems & Services Fund
Information Technology Services 1,075,884
Operating Contingencies 65,000

Total Information Systems & Services Fund Appropriation $ 1,140,884

Insurance Services Fund
Property, Liability and Workers Compensation Insurance 1,018,295
Transfers Out To Other Funds 69,196
Operating Contingencies 100,000

Total Insurance Services Fund Appropriation $ 1,187,491

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 73,515,507

Total Unappropriated and Reserved Amounts, All Funds 35,148,593

Total Adopted Budget 108,664,100

Resolution No. 2016 - 4



3. Imposing & Categorizing Property Taxes:  The City Council for the 
City of McMinnville hereby imposes the property taxes provided for in the Adopted Budget at the
rate of $5.0200 per $1,000 of assessed value for general operations and in the amount of
$2,715,000 for debt service;  and that these taxes are hereby imposed and categorized for tax
year 2016 - 2017 upon the assessed value of all taxable property within the city.  

Excluded
Subject to the from the

General General
Government Government

Limitation Limitation

General Fund $5.0200 / $1,000
Debt Service Fund 2,715,000

Category Totals $5.0200 / $1,000 2,715,000

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall continue in full force
and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting held the
28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes:

Nays:

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

Approved as to form:

MAYOR

CITY ATTORNEY

Resolution No. 2016 - 5



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 47:  Approving a Personal Services Agreement Between the City of McMinnville
and Doug Montgomery

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached resolution

Attachments
Pers Services Resolution 
Montgomery Contract 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 – _47__

A Resolution Approving a Personal Services Agreement between the City of 
McMinnville and Doug Montgomery.

RECITALS:

City Planning Director Doug Montgomery will retire June 30, 2016.  The City’s 
incoming Planning Director will begin her employment with the City no later than August 
1, 2016.  Mr. Montgomery has offered to work as a contract employee from July 1, 2016
to December 31, 2016, to support the operations of the Planning Department during the 
transition period.

The attached agreement provides for Mr. Montgomery to work not more than
twenty four hours per week between July 1, 2016 and December 31, 2016.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON as follows:

1. The attached Personal Services Agreement is approved.
2. The City Manager is authorized to enter into the Agreement.
3. This Resolution will take effect immediately upon passage and shall continue in 

full force and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting 
held the 28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

MAYOR
Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY



CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
for

Transition Consulting Services

This Contract is between the CITY OF McMINNVILLE, a municipal corporation of the State of 
Oregon (City) and Doug Montgomery (Contractor). The City’s Project Manager for this Contract is 
Martha Meeker.

The parties mutually covenant and agree as follows:

1. Effective Date and Duration.  This contract is effective on the date at which every party has 
signed the contract and will expire, unless otherwise terminated or extended, on December 31, 2016. 

2. Statement of Work.  The work to be performed under this contract consists of professional 
consulting and project advising associated with the transition of a new Planning Director.

3. Consideration.
a. City agrees to pay Contractor for actual hours worked at the rate of $75.00 per hour, 

and allowable expenses incurred for accomplishing the work required by this contract, but not to exceed 
24 hours per week.

b. Contractor will furnish with each invoice for services an itemized statement showing
both the work performed and the number of hours devoted to the project by the Contractor and its 
agents.  City will pay the Contractor for services within 30 days of receiving an itemized bill that has 
been approved by the Project Manager.

c. City certifies that sufficient funds are available and authorized for expenditure to 
finance the cost of this contract.

4. Additional Services.  Additional services, not covered in Exhibit A, will be provided if mutually 
agreed upon by the parties and authorized or confirmed in writing by the City, and will be paid for by the 
City as provided in this Contract in addition to the compensation authorized in subsection 3a.  If 
authorized by the City, the additional services will be performed under a series of Task Orders defining 
the services to be performed, time of performance, and cost for each phase of services.

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE]



CONTRACTOR DATA, CERTIFICATION, AND SIGNATURE

Name (please print): 

Address: 

Social Security #: 
Federal Tax ID #: 
State Tax ID #:
Citizenship:  Nonresident alien ______ Yes      _____ No
Business Designation (check one):  _____ Individual     ____ Sole Proprietorship      ____ Partnership

_____ Corporation  ____ Government/Nonprofit

The above information must be provided prior to contract approval.  Payment information will be 
reported to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) under the name and taxpayer I.D. number provided 
above. (See IRS 1099 for additional instructions regarding taxpayer ID numbers.)  Information not 
matching IRS records could subject you to 31 percent backup withholding.

I, the undersigned, understand that the Standard Terms and Conditions for Personal Services Contracts 
and Exhibits A, B, and C are an integral part of this contract and agree to perform the work described in 
Exhibit A in accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract; certify under penalty of perjury 
that I/my business am not/is not in violation of any Oregon tax laws; and certify I am an independent 
contractor as defined in ORS 670.600.

Signed by Contractor: 

Signature/Title                                                                                Date

NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR:  This contract does not bind the City of McMinnville unless and until it has 
been fully executed by the appropriate parties.

CITY OF McMINNVILLE SIGNATURE

Approved:       

City Manager or Designee                              Date

Reviewed:          

City Attorney or Designee                               Date



CITY OF McMINNVILLE
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS

1. Contractor is Independent Contractor.
a. Contractor will perform the work required by this contract as an independent 

contractor.  Although the City reserves the right (i) to determine (and modify) the delivery schedule for 
the work to be performed and (ii) to evaluate the quality of the completed performance, the City cannot 
and will not control the means or manner of the Contractor’s performance.  The Contractor is 
responsible for determining the appropriate means and manner of performing the work. 

b.  The Contractor represents and warrants that Contractor (i) is not currently an employee 
of the federal government or the State of Oregon, and (ii) meets the specific independent contractor 
standards of ORS 670.600, as certified on the Independent Contractor Certification Statement attached 
as Exhibit C.

c.  Contractor will be responsible for any federal or state taxes applicable to any 
compensation or payment paid to Contractor under this contract.  

d.  If Contractor is a contributing member of the Public Employees’ Retirement System, City 
will withhold Contractor’s contribution to the retirement system from Contractor’s compensation or 
payments under this contract and make a corresponding City contribution.  Contractor is not eligible for 
any federal Social Security, unemployment insurance, or workers’ compensation benefits from 
compensation or payments to Contractor under this contract, except as a self-employed individual.

2. Subcontracts and Assignment.  Contractor will not subcontract any of the work required by this 
contract, or assign or transfer any of its interest in this contract, without the prior written consent of the 
City.  Contractor agrees that if subcontractors are employed in the performance of this contract, the 
Contractor and its subcontractors are subject to the requirements and sanctions of ORS Chapter 656, 
Workers’ Compensation.

3. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  City and Contractor are the only parties to this contract and are 
the only parties entitled to enforce its terms.  Nothing in this contract gives or provides any benefit or 
right, whether directly, indirectly, or otherwise, to third persons unless such third persons are 
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of 
this contract. 

4. Successors in Interest.  The provisions of this contract will be binding upon and will inure to the 
benefit of the parties, and their respective successors and approved assigns, if any.

5. Early Termination
a.  The City and the Contractor, by mutual written agreement, may terminate this Contract 

at any time. 
b.  The City, on 30 days written notice to the Contractor, may terminate this Contract for 

any reason deemed appropriate in its sole discretion. 
c.  Either the City or the Contractor may terminate this Contract in the event of a breach of 

the Contract by the other party.  Prior to termination, however, the party seeking the termination will 
give to the other party written notice of the breach and of the party’s intent to terminate.  If the Party 
has not entirely cured the breach within 15 days of the notice, then the party giving the notice may 
terminate the Contract at any time thereafter by giving a written notice of termination.



6. Payment on Early Termination
a.  If this contract is terminated under 5(a) or 5(b), the City will pay the Contractor for work 

performed in accordance with the Contract prior to the termination date.  Payment may be pro-rated as 
necessary.

b.  If this contract is terminated under 5(c) by the Contractor due to a breach by the City, 
then the City will pay the Contractor as provided in subsection (a) of this section.

c.  If this contract is terminated under 5(c) by the City due to a breach by the Contractor, 
then the City will pay the Contractor as provided in subsection (a) of this section, subject to set off of 
excess costs, as provided for in section 7, Remedies.

7. Remedies
a. In the event of termination under 5(c) by the City due to a breach by the Contractor, the 

City may complete the work either itself, by agreement with another contractor, or by a combination 
thereof.  In the event the cost of completing the work exceeds the remaining unpaid balance of the total 
compensation provided under this contract, the Contractor will pay to the City the amount of the 
reasonable excess.

b.  The remedies provided to the City under section 5 and section 7 for a breach by the 
Contractor are not exclusive.  The City will also be entitled to any other equitable and legal remedies 
that are available.

c.  In the event of breach of this Contract by the City, the Contractor’s remedy will be 
limited to termination of the Contract and receipt of payment as provided in section 5(c) and 6(b).

8. Access to Records.  Contractor will maintain, and the City and its authorized representatives will 
have access to, all books, documents, papers and records of Contractor which relate to this contract for 
the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcripts for a period of three years after 
final payment.  Copies of applicable records will be made available upon request.  Payment for the cost 
of copies is reimbursable by the City.

9. Ownership of Work.  All work products of the Contractor, including background data, 
documentation, and staff work that is preliminary to final reports, and which result from this contract, 
are the property of the City.  Contractor will retain no ownership interests or rights in the work product.  
Use of any work product of the Contractor for any purpose other than the use intended by this contract 
is at the risk of the City.

10. Compliance with Applicable Law.  Contractor will comply with all federal, state, and local laws 
and ordinances applicable to the work under this contract, including, without limitation, the provisions 
of ORS 279B.220, 279B.230, and 279B.235, as set forth on Exhibit B. Without limiting the foregoing, 
Contractor expressly agrees to comply with: (I) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Section V of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub L No. 101-336), ORS 
659A.142, and all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to those laws; and (iv) all 
other applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statues, rules, and 
regulations.

11. Waiver.  The failure of the City to enforce any provision of this contract will not constitute a 
waiver by the City of that or any other provision.

12. Errors.  The Contractor will perform such additional work as may be necessary to correct errors 
in the work required under this contract without undue delays and without additional cost.



13. Governing Law.  The provisions of this contract will be construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Oregon and ordinances of the City of McMinnville, Oregon.  Any action or suits involving any 
question arising under this contract must be brought in the appropriate court in Yamhill County, Oregon.  
Provided, however, if the claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it will be brought and 
conducted in the United States District Court for the District of Oregon.

14. Severability.  If any term or provision of this contract is declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions will 
not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties will be construed and enforced as if the 
contract did not contain the particular term or provision held invalid.

15. Merger Clause.  THIS CONTRACT AND ATTACHED EXHIBITS CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES.  NO WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION, OR CHANGE OF TERMS 
OF THIS CONTRACT WILL BIND EITHER PARTY UNLESS IN WRITING, SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES.  ANY
WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION, OR CHANGE, IF MADE, WILL BE EFFECTIVE ONLY IN THE SPECIFIC 
INSTANCE AND FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE GIVEN.  THERE ARE NO UNDERSTANDINGS, AGREEMENTS, 
OR REPRESENTATIONS, ORAL OR WRITTEN, NOT SPECIFIED HEREIN REGARDING THIS CONTRACT.  BY ITS 
SIGNATURE, CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES IT HAS READ AND UNDERSTANDS THIS CONTRACT AND 
AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.



EXHIBIT A
STATEMENT OF THE WORK

The McMinnville City Manager has requested assistance in providing planning related services to 
support the existing staff during the month of July (the period of time between my retirement from the 
City and the arrival of the new Planning Director).  Further assistance may also be requested and 
provided beyond that time, up to December 31, 2016, depending upon the needs of the department, 
request of the City, and my availability.

Work and services provided during the month of July would include, but are not limited to those items 
noted in the list below.  This work would not exceed 24 hours each week.

 Provide current planning services, to include the preparation of staff reports for the Planning 
Commission and other review bodies; drafting of public notices and ordinances; assisting the 
public and other agencies in matters related to land use planning or code enforcement; and 
reviewing site and/or building plans for compliance with City ordinances. 

 Provide economic development services, to include attending the July 14, 2016 meeting of the 
MEDP Board (if so requested); and responding to inquiries regarding economic development 
related matters.

 Provide long range planning and special project support services, to include work on the 
Affordable Housing Task Force’s “short term” action plan projects; conducting work associated 
with proposed amendments to Chapter 17.62 (sign amortization provisions) and Chapter 17.64 
(buffers from preschools); and work related to the enforcement of the City’s sign amortization 
clause.

 Provide other technical and administrative services and support for the Planning Department as 
may be mutually agreed upon by the parties to this contract.

Depending upon the desires of the City and my availability, these (and additional) work tasks and 
services may be extended beyond the month of July upon mutual agreement of the parties.  In any 
event, the work would not exceed 24 hours per week.



EXHIBIT B
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW

     279B.220 Conditions concerning payment, 
contributions, liens, withholding. Every public 
contract shall contain a condition that the 
contractor shall:
     (1) Make payment promptly, as due, to all 
persons supplying to the contractor labor or 
material for the performance of the work provided 
for in the contract.
     (2) Pay all contributions or amounts due the 
Industrial Accident Fund from the contractor or 
subcontractor incurred in the performance of the 
contract.
     (3) Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or 
prosecuted against the state or a county, school 
district, municipality, municipal corporation or 
subdivision thereof, on account of any labor or 
material furnished.
     (4) Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums 
withheld from employees under ORS 316.167. [2003 
c.794 §76a]

     279B.230 Condition concerning payment for 
medical care and providing workers’ compensation.
(1) Every public contract shall contain a condition 
that the contractor shall promptly, as due, make 
payment to any person, copartnership, association 
or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and 
hospital care services or other needed care and 
attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the 
employees of the contractor, of all sums that the 
contractor agrees to pay for the services and all 
moneys and sums that the contractor collected or 
deducted from the wages of employees under any 
law, contract or agreement for the purpose of 
providing or paying for the services.
     (2) Every public contract shall contain a clause or 
condition that all subject employers working under 
the contract are either employers that will comply 
with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt 
under ORS 656.126. [2003 c.794 §76c]

     279B.235 Condition concerning hours of labor; 
compliance with pay equity provisions; employee 
discussions of rate of pay or benefits. (1) Except as 
provided in subsections (3) to (6) of this section, 
every public contract subject to this chapter must 
provide that:

     (a) A contractor may not employ an employee for 
more than 10 hours in any one day, or 40 hours in 
any one week, except in cases of necessity, 
emergency or when the public policy absolutely 
requires otherwise, and in such cases, except in 
cases of contracts for personal services designated 
under ORS 279A.055, the contractor shall pay the 
employee at least time and a half pay for:
     (A)(i) All overtime in excess of eight hours in any 
one day or 40 hours in any one week if the work 
week is five consecutive days, Monday through 
Friday; or
     (ii) All overtime in excess of 10 hours in any one 
day or 40 hours in any one week if the work week is 
four consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and
     (B) All work the employee performs on Saturday 
and on any legal holiday specified in ORS 279B.020.
     (b) The contractor shall comply with the 
prohibition set forth in ORS 652.220, that 
compliance is a material element of the contract and 
that a failure to comply is a breach that entitles the 
contracting agency to terminate the contract for 
cause.
     (c) The contractor may not prohibit any of the 
contractor’s employees from discussing the 
employee’s rate of wage, salary, benefits or other 
compensation with another employee or another 
person and may not retaliate against an employee 
who discusses the employee’s rate of wage, salary, 
benefits or other compensation with another 
employee or another person.
     (2) A contractor shall give notice in writing to 
employees who work on a public contract, either at 
the time of hire or before work begins on the 
contract, or by posting a notice in a location 
frequented by employees, of the number of hours 
per day and days per week that the contractor may 
require the employees to work.
     (3) A public contract for personal services, as 
described in ORS 279A.055, must provide that the 
contractor shall pay the contractor’s employees who
work under the public contract at least time and a 
half for all overtime the employees work in excess of 
40 hours in any one week, except for employees 
under a personal services public contract who are 
excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 
U.S.C. 201 to 209 from receiving overtime.



     (4) A public contract for services at a county fair, 
or for another event that a county fair board 
authorizes, must provide that the contractor shall 
pay employees who work under the public contract 
at least time and a half for work in excess of 10 
hours in any one day or 40 hours in any one week. A 
contractor shall notify employees who work under 
the public contract, either at the time of hire or 
before work begins on the public contract, or by 
posting a notice in a location frequented by 
employees, of the number of hours per day and days 
per week that the contractor may require the 
employees to work.
     (5)(a) Except as provided in subsection (4) of this 
section, a public contract for services must provide 
that the contractor shall pay employees at least time 
and a half pay for work the employees perform 
under the public contract on the legal holidays 
specified in a collective bargaining agreement or in 
ORS 279B.020 (1)(b)(B) to (G) and for all time the 
employee works in excess of 10 hours in any one 

day or in excess of 40 hours in any one week, 
whichever is greater.
     (b) A contractor shall notify in writing employees 
who work on a public contract for services, either at 
the time of hire or before work begins on the public 
contract, or by posting a notice in a location 
frequented by employees, of the number of hours 
per day and days per week that the contractor may 
require the employees to work.
     (6) This section does not apply to public 
contracts:
     (a) With financial institutions as defined in ORS 
706.008.
     (b) Made pursuant to the authority of the State 
Forester or the State Board of Forestry under ORS 
477.406 for labor performed in the prevention or 
suppression of fire.
     (c) For goods or personal property. [2003 c.794 
§77; 2005 c.103 §8f; 2015 c.454 §4]



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT FOR INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
(Contractor complete A or B below, Project Manager complete C below.)

A.  CONTRACTOR IS A CORPORATION
CORPORATION CERTIFICATION:  I am authorized to act on behalf of the entity named below, and certify 
under penalty of perjury that it is a corporation.

    
_____________________________________________________________________________________
   Entity                                                            Signature                                         Date

B. CONTRACTOR IS INDEPENDENT.
Contractor certifies he/she meets the following standards:
1. The individual or business entity providing services is free from direction and control over the means 

and manner of providing the services, subject only to the right of the person for whom the services 
are provided to specify the desired results,

2. The individual or business entity is licensed under ORS chapters 671 or 701 if the individual or 
business entity provides services for which a license is required by ORS chapters 671 or 701,

3. The individual or business entity is responsible for obtaining other licenses or certificates necessary to 
provide the services,

4. The individual or business entity is customarily engaged in an independently established business, as 
any three of the following requirements are met (please check three or more of the following):

     ____ A. The person maintains a business location i) that is separate from the business or work 
location of the person for whom the services are provided or ii) that is in a portion of the 
person’s residence and that portion is used primarily for the business.

     ____ B.  The person bears the risk of loss related to the business or the provision of services as shown 
by factors such as i) the person enters into fixed-price contracts, ii) the person is required to 
correct defective work, iii) the person warrants the services provided, or iv) the person 
negotiates indemnification agreements or purchases liability insurance, performance bonds, 
or errors and omissions insurance.

     ____ C.  The person provides contracted services for two or more different persons within a 12 
month period or the person routinely engages in business advertising, solicitation, or other 
marketing efforts reasonably calculated to obtain new contracts to provide similar services.

     ____ D.  The person makes a significant investment in the business, through means such as i) 
purchasing tools or equipment necessary to provide the services, ii) paying for the premises 
or facilities where the services are provided, or iii) paying for licenses, certificates, or 
specialized training required to provide the services.

     ____ E.  The person has the authority to hire other persons to provide or to assist in providing the 
services and has the authority to fire those persons.

_____________________________________________________________________________________
    Contractor Signature                                                                                         Date

(Project Manager complete C below.)
C.  CITY APPROVAL
ORS 670.600 Independent contractor standards.  As used in various provisions of ORS chapters 316, 
656, 657, 671, and 701, an individual or business entity that performs services for remuneration will be 
considered to perform the services as an “independent contractor” if the standards of this section are 
met.  The contractor meets the following standards:

1.  The Contractor is free from direction and control over the means and manner of providing the 
services, subject only to the right of the City to specify the desired results,



2.  The Contractor is responsible for obtaining licenses under ORS chapters 671 and 701 when these 
licenses are required to provide the services,

3.  The Contractor is responsible for obtaining other licenses or certificates necessary to provide the 
services,

4.  The Contractor has the authority to hire and fire employees to provide or assist in providing the 
services, and 

5.   The person is customarily engaged in an independently established business as indicated in B. 4 
above.

       
_____________________________________________________________________________________
      Project Manager Signature                                                                              Date



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 06/28/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016 - 48:  Authorizing the City Manager to execute the forthcoming grant offer from the
FAA relative to the Airport Improvement Project contingent upon the City Attorney's review

BACKGROUND:
The City with the help of its consultant, Century West Engineering, is preparing a Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grant application for Construction and
Construction Services for the Runway 4-22 Rehabilitation Project.
 
It’s expected the FAA will send out a grant offer for the City’s acceptance in mid-July to mid-August and
has asked the City to accept and sign the offer within one week. In order to meet this timeline, the Council
is being asked to authorize the City Manager to execute the forthcoming FAA Grant Offer contingent
upon the City Attorney’s review of the terms and conditions.
 
The Grant Application is in the amount of $7,725,408 which is contingent upon FAA approval of an
Independent Fee Evaluation (IFE) of the Construction Services scope of work which is currently in
process.  The amount could change but is not expected to. This will be the third and final grant for this
project using  FAA (AIP) Grants (discretionary and non-discretionary funds) that will cover consulting and
construction costs.  90% of this project is federally funded with a 10% match with City funds.  
 
The FY16/17 Budget contains a project in the Airport Fund (25) for Construction and Construction
Services the rehabilitation of the main Runway 4-22 which is expected to being in May 2017. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:
RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the City Council approve the Resolution authorizing the City
Manager to execute the forthcoming grant offer from the FAA relative to the Airport Improvement Project
contingent upon the City Attorney’s review.
 

Attachments
FAA Grant Offer Resolution 
FAA Form 5100-100 





RESOLUTION NO. 2016 -

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute the forthcoming grant offer 
from the FAA relative to the Airport Improvement Project contingent upon the City Attorney’s 
review. 

RECITALS:  

The City with the help of its consultant, Century West Engineering, is preparing a 
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grant application 
for Construction and Construction Services for the Runway 4-22 Rehabilitation Project. 

It’s expected the FAA will send out a grant offer for the City’s acceptance in mid-July 
to mid-August and has asked the City to accept and sign the offer within one week. In order 
to meet this timeline, the Council is being asked to authorize the City Manager to execute the 
forthcoming FAA Grant Offer contingent upon the City Attorney’s review of the terms and 
conditions. 

The Grant Application is in the amount of $7,725,408 which is contingent upon FAA 
approval of an Independent Fee Evaluation (IFE) of the Construction Services scope of work 
which is currently in process.  The amount could change bit is not expected to.  This will be 
the third and final grant for this project using  FAA (AIP) Grants (discretionary and non-
discretionary funds) that will cover consulting and construction costs.  90% of this project is 
federally funded with a 10% match with City funds.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the forthcoming 
agreement with the Federal Aviation Administration for the City of McMinnville 
Airport Improvement Project in the amount of $7,725,408.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting held 
the 28th day of June 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of June 2016.

    MAYOR

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY




























	Agenda
	AI_1058__1058
	ATT_Summary Memo
	AI_1059__1059
	ATT_Memo from Chief Scales
	ATT_Memo from Captain Marks
	ATT_PowerPoint Presentation
	AI_1054__1054
	ATT_March 22, 2016 Minutes
	AI_1040__1040
	ATT_Rev Share Resolution
	AI_1041__1041
	ATT_Rev Shar Resolution
	AI_1042__1042
	ATT_Vol Work Comp Resolution
	AI_1043__1043
	ATT_Amb Rate Resolution
	AI_1044__1044
	ATT_MRFPD Resolution
	ATT_Agreement
	AI_1045__1045
	ATT_CDBG Officer Resolution
	AI_1046__1046
	ATT_YCAHC Board Resolution
	AI_1032_Fire Department Medical Director Contract Renewal
	ATT_Medical Dir Resolution
	ATT_Contract for Medical Director Professional Services
	AI_1037_5th Street construction contract award resolution
	ATT_5th St Bid Award Resolution
	ATT_PROJECT INFORMATION SHEET
	AI_1056_5th Street _ Alpine Ave design services Task Order No. 3
	ATT_HDR Task Order 3 Resolution
	ATT_TASK ORDER NO. 3
	PSA_TaskOrder 3 - 062816
	HDR ENGINEERING, INC.

	5th_Alpine_A4
	TASKS, DELIVERABLES AND SCHEDULE
	TASK 3.0 RIGHT-OF-WAY AND REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS
	Subtask 3.3  Appraisals and Appraisal Reviews
	Subtask 3.4 Acquisitions
	Subtask 3.5 Final Reports and Certifications

	Subtask 4.2  Utility Coordination and Relocation
	Subtask 4.2.1 Coordination Meetings
	Subtask 4.2.1 Deliverables:

	Subtask 4.2.2 Notice of Utility Conflict
	Subtask 4.2.2 Deliverables:

	Subtask 4.2.3 Letters of Approvals of Relocation Plans and Relocation Time Requirements
	Subtask 4.2.3 Deliverables:

	TASK 5.0 TRAFFIC ENGINEERING AND MANAGEMENT
	Add the following to Task 5.0 Traffic Engineering and Management
	Subtask 5.1 Deliverable:
	Subtask 5.2 Deliverables:

	TASK 6.0 APLINE STREETSCAPE DESIGN
	Subtask 6.2 Deliverables:

	TASK 7.0 PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND ESTIMATE
	Subtask 7.1 Deliverables:

	Subtask 7.2 Final Plans, Specifications and Estimate (100%)
	Subtask 7.2 Deliverables:

	TASK 9.0 Construction Engineering and Inspection for 5th Street
	Subtask 9.1 Construction Project Management and Coordination
	Subtask 9.1 Deliverables:

	Subtask 9.2 Construction Engineering and Inspection (CEI)
	Subtask 9.2 Deliverables: See Subtask 9.3

	Subtask 9.3 General Documentation
	Subtask 9.3 Deliverables:

	Subtask 9.4 Review of Construction Submittals
	Subtask 9.4 Deliverables:

	Subtask 9.5 Consultation During Construction
	Subtask 9.5 Deliverables:

	Subtask 9.6 Contract Change Orders
	Subtask 9.6 Deliverables:

	Subtask 9.7 Project Closeout
	Subtask 9.7 Deliverables:



	McMinnvilleBond A3 Cost Est
	Fee_1


	AI_1038_5th Street property purchase approval resolution
	ATT_Ninety Degrees Resolution
	ATT_DEDICATION DEED
	AI_1069__1069
	ATT_Janitorial Resolution
	AI_1063_Resolution Adopting Supplemental Budget for 2015-16
	ATT_Supp Budget Resolution
	AI_1064_Resolution making budgetary transfers for fiscal year 2015-16
	ATT_Budget Transfer Resolution
	AI_1035_Appeal of Planning Commission Decision
	ATT_Appeal (AP 1-16) Public Record
	AI_1053__1053
	ATT_Gary Eastlund Letter
	AI_1065_Resolution Adopting 2016-17 Budget
	ATT_Memorandum 2016-17 Budget Adoption
	ATT_Adopt Budget Resolution
	AI_1068__1068
	ATT_Pers Services Resolution
	ATT_Montgomery Contract
	AI_1070__1070
	ATT_FAA Grant Offer Resolution
	ATT_FAA Form 5100-100

